
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

JOINT (ALL) OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 

7.30 pm 
Thursday 

23 January 2014 
Town Hall 

 
 
Members of each of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Committees are invited to attend 
this joint meeting. For practical purposes, the joint meeting is being convened as a 
single meeting but separate minutes will be taken for each Overview & Scrutiny  
Committee as if it were a special meeting of each of them. 
 

Members are requested to bring with them to the meeting their copy of the 
budget report to the Cabinet Meeting on 22 January. 
 

 
 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Anthony Clements 

Anthony.clements@havering.gov.uk 
Tel: 01708 433065  

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Joint (All) Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 23 January 2014 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP AND CHAIRMAN OF MEETING (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
 Details of the Memberships of the Committee are attached. 

 
The Committees are asked to agree a Chairman for the meeting.  
 

2 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.  
 

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS (IF ANY)  

 
 - receive.  

 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting. Members may still disclose an interest in an item at any time 
prior to the consideration of the matter. 
 

5 THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
 Members are asked to retain, and to bring with them to the meeting, the report 

to be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 22 January. 
 
The Cabinet will consider any concerns etc raised at the joint meeting before 
formulating its recommendations on the budget and Council Tax for 2013/14 and thus 
this is the Overview and Scrutiny Committees’ opportunity to scrutinise the budget 
proposals.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Committees, individually and collectively: 
 

1. Receive a presentation from the Leader of the Council and note the proposed 
revenue priorities relevant to the service(s). 
 

2. Note the financial position of the Council. 
 

3. Note that the report is formally consulting them on the proposed Corporate 
budget adjustments and that this is the opportunity to scrutinise the budget 
proposals. 
 

4. Consider the proposals and what, if any, representations they wish to make 
upon them.  

 

 



Joint (All) Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 23 January 2014 

 
 

 

 
 Andrew Beesley 

Committee Administration Manager 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS 
 
 

Committee Membership 
Councillors 

Children & Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(14 members:) 

(Quorum 6) 

Chairman:
 
Sandra Binion (UKIP) 

Vice-Chairman: Gillian Ford (Res) 

Members: 
Wendy Brice-Thompson (Con) 
Robby Misir (Con) 
Keith Wells (Con) 
Frederick Thompson (Con) 
Melvin Wallace (Con) 
Nic Dodin (Res) 
Pat Murray (Lab) 
 

Voting co-opted Members: 

Statutory Members representing the Churches: 

Phillip Grundy (Church of England) and Jack How 
(Roman Catholic Church) 

Statutory Members representing parent governors: 

Anne Ling (Primary), Garry Dennis (Secondary) and 
Julie Lamb (Special) 

Non-voting members representing local teacher 

unions and professional associations:  

Margaret Cameron (NAHT), Ian Rusha (NUT) and 
Keith Passingham (NASUWT).  
 

Crime & Disorder Committee  

(6 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

Chairman:
 
Osman Dervish (Con) 

Vice-Chairman: John Wood (Res) 

Members: 
Roger Evans (Con) 
Georgina Galpin (Con) 
Linda van den Hende (Res) 
David Durant (IRG) 
 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

(6 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

Chairman:
 
Jeff Brace (Con) 

Vice-Chairman: John Mylod (Res) 

Members: 
Lynden Thorpe (Con) 
Keith Wells (Con) 
Barbara Matthews (Res) 
David Durant (IRG) 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



 

 

 

Committee Membership 
Councillors 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(6 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

Chairman: Pam Light (Con) 

Vice-Chairman: Nic Dodin (Res) 

Members: 
Wendy Brice-Thompson (Con) 
Peter Gardner (Con) 
Ray Morgon (Res) 
Ted Eden (UKIP) 
 

Individuals Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(7 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

Chairman: Wendy Brice-Thompson (Con) 

Vice-Chairman: June Alexander (Res) 

Members: 
Jeff Brace (Con) 
Pam Light (Con) 
Keith Wells (Con) 
Linda Van den Hende (Res) 
Denis O’Flynn (Lab) 
 

Towns & Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

(9 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

 

Chairman:
 
Linda Hawthorn (Res) 

Vice-Chairman: Wendy Brice-Thompson (Con) 

Members: 
Osman Dervish (Con) 
Barry Oddy (Con) 
Garry Pain (Con) 
Linda Trew (Con) 
June Alexander (Res) 
Paul McGeary (Lab) 
Michael Deon Burton (IRG) 
 

Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(9 members:) 

(Quorum 3) 

Chairman: Robby Misir (Con) 

Vice-Chairman: Ray Morgon (Res) 

Members: 
Rebecca Bennett (Con) 
Jeff Brace (Con) 
Billy Taylor (Con) 
Damian White (Con) 
Clarence Barrett (Res) 
Keith Darvill (Lab) 
Sandra Binion (UKIP) 
 

 

Page 2



$damted1z.doc 

 

 

 
 

CABINET 
22 JANUARY 2014 

REPORT 

  
Subject Heading: 
 

The Council’s Financial Strategy 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Cllr Roger Ramsey 

CMT Lead: 
 

Andrew Blake-Herbert 
Group Director Finance & Commerce 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Mike Stringer 
Head of Finance & Procurement 
01708 432101 
mike.stringer@havering.gov.uk 

Policy context: 
 

The Council is required to approve an 
annual budget and this report provides 
information to enable Cabinet to make 
recommendations to Council in February 
2014 

Financial summary: 
 

There are no specific financial issues, this 
report deals with the overall budget 
position and associated issues 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Is this a Strategic Decision? 
 

No 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

December 2014 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Value 

 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 
Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough 
Championing education and learning for all 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity in thriving towns and 
villages 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax 

[X] 
[X] 
[X] 
 
[X] 
[X] 

 

 

SUMMARY 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



$damted1z.doc 

 
 
 
Cabinet received reports in August and September that set out an update on national 
developments and information on the financial position within Havering. 
 
This report updates Members on the progress of the corporate budget and the 
proposed financial strategy for the coming financial year, responding to the financial 
position facing the Council, and recognising the need to develop a new, long term 
strategy for approval by the Administration after the local elections in May. 
 
This report sets out the additional proposals now identified for consideration by all 
the relevant Committees and for consultation with stakeholders. 
 
The provisional Local Government Financial Settlement has now been announced, 
and relevant details are included in this report, together with a summary of the key 
elements of the Autumn Budget Statement. 
 
  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
Cabinet is asked to: 
 
1. Note the progress made to date with the development of the Council’s budget 

for 2014/15 and the Council’s intention to freeze council tax for a further year - 
making use of the Government’s Council Tax Freeze Grant. 

 
2. Note the outcome of the Autumn Budget Statement and the likely impact on 

local authorities. 
 

3. Note the outcome of the provisional local government financial settlement 
announcement, and that arising from the settlement, there are reductions in 
mainstream Government funding for 2014/15 and 2015/16 of around £7m and 
£9m respectively. 
 

4. Note that a response to the consultation process will have been submitted by 
time Cabinet meets and that a meeting with the Minister has been requested. 
 

5. Delegate approval of the Council’s response to the consultation on the 
business rates appeals process to the Cabinet Member for Value. 
 

6. Delegate authority to the Group Director for Children, Adults and Housing to 
agree inflation rates with social care providers for 2014/15. 
 

7. Delegate authority to the Cabinet Members for Individuals and Value to 
approve an annual spend plan for the Public Health grant. 
 

Page 4



$damted1z.doc 

8. Note that it is proposed to undertake a one-off investment of £1m during 
2014/15 as a result of surplus monies arising from the New Homes Bonus. 

 
9. Expand the 2013/14 capital programme by £250,000 to enable the Council to 

jointly acquire the freehold interest in the former Ardleigh Green Baptist 
Church as ‘Tenants in Common’ in conjunction with the Trustees of the 
Ardleigh Green Family Centre. 
  

10. Issue this report for consultation to Members, the unions and staff, local 
residents and other stakeholder groups. 

 
11. Agree that a consultative presentation will be made to a joint meeting of the 

Overview & Scrutiny Committees. 
 
12. Note the financial position of the Council in the current year. 
 
13. Agree that any future underspends from the Corporate Contingency Fund, 

from the Transformation budget, and from any service revenue underspends, 
are allocated to the Strategic Reserve. 

 
14. Approve the updated version of the Corporate Plan set out in Appendix F. 
 
15. Note the summary of the GLA’s consultation budget and the expected date for 

the publication of the final proposals. 
 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1. Cabinet has previously received two reports on progress with the Corporate 

Budget, in August and September.  This report sets out the position with 
developing the Council’s budget for the coming financial year, the 
announcement of the Autumn Budget Statement, and the subsequent 
announcement of the local government financial settlement. 

 
1.2. The Council established a broad approach to stabilising its financial position in 

response to the incoming Government’s austerity measures during 2010.  This 
has seen a wide range of savings introduced designed to not only deliver a 
stable financial position, but also to ensure that as far as possible, these 
savings do not impact on those services which our community regards as 
highly important and highly regarded.  The Administration has remained 
committed to this and the proposals contained in this report have been 
developed with that objective in mind. 

 
1.3. The budget proposals set out in this report will freeze the council tax for the 

fourth year in succession, reflecting the determination of the Administration to 
stabilise council tax - as set out in the Living Ambition Goal for Value.  The 

Page 5



$damted1z.doc 

proposals support a series of priorities that have been defined through public 
consultation in recent years – both through the Your Council, Your Say and 
Spring Clean surveys.  These priorities include: keeping Havering clean and 
safe; supporting those most in need; maintaining roads and pavements and 
protecting libraries and parks.  There is also a clear need to promote and 
encourage new local businesses – both to bring employment to the Borough 
and to ensure that Havering benefits from the Government’s new funding 
model for local authorities.  The measures set out in this paper will allow the 
Council to support these priorities. 

 
1.4. Specific budget proposals are included as part of this report where these have 

been developed and Cabinet is asked to approve these for consultation with 
the local community, other stakeholders, and committees, to inform the final 
consideration of proposals at the meeting of Cabinet in February.  Comments 
about the Council’s proposals will be invited online from members of the public 
and this will be publicised through various communications channels. 

 
1.5. The reports submitted to Cabinet during the budget setting cycle for 2013/14 

highlighted the extent of change to the funding of local authorities; the new 
funding regime included these elements: 

 
• Rolled up and top-sliced grants 
• New grants 
• Localised business rates including tariffs/top-ups and levies/safety nets 
• Localised Council Tax support (previously benefits) 
• New formula and damping mechanisms 
• A new Council Tax base calculation 
• A new NNDR1 calculation. 

 
1.6. These factors were covered at some length in those reports.  The new system 

has now largely bedded down, and this report therefore updates Cabinet with 
the impact this has had, whether this was in line with expectation, and any 
relevant developments over the past year.  The current system broadly 
freezes the way in which the main element of Government funding is 
allocated.  However, there is still a consultation process around the 
settlement, and officers have been examining the new system to determine 
what scope, if any, exists as a basis to lobby Government.  These aspects are 
covered in this report.  It is fair to say the system remains complex and difficult 
to comprehend, even if the scope for change may now be limited. 
 

1.7. Officers are continuing to analyse the settlement in consultation with 
colleagues elsewhere, and this is likely to continue up to the point when the 
budget report to Council is finalised.  There are continuing changes in funding 
for social care as well as amendments to the business rating system 
announced as part of the Autumn Budget Statement .  The continued 
reduction in funding emphasises the degree of financial risk facing local 
authorities, aside from the impact of the specific proposals contained in the 
settlement.  Cabinet is therefore asked to be mindful of this when considering 
this report. 

 

Page 6



$damted1z.doc 

2. THE AUTUMN BUDGET STATEMENT, THE SETTLEMENT AND GENERAL 
FINANCIAL PROSPECTS 
 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 
 

2.1. The Coalition Government published the outcome of its Comprehensive 
Spending Review in October 2010.  Full details of the Review have been 
reported at some length in reports to Cabinet as part of the budget-setting 
cycle for previous years. 

 
2.2. To remind Cabinet of the background, the Review set out at a high level 

spending plans for each Government department.  The major effect was, as 
expected, a significant reduction in funding for the public sector over the four 
years covered by CSR.  In anticipation of the cuts expected to be announced 
by the incoming Coalition Government, plans were put in place to assess the 
likely budget gap, and means of bridging it. 

 
2.3. Cabinet agreed reports in July 2010 and July 2011, setting out a range of 

savings proposals designed to largely bridge the forecast budget gap between 
2011/12 and 2014/15, as refined in the light of, firstly, the CSR announcement, 
and secondly, subsequent financial settlements.  Subsequent announcements 
over prospective changes in the funding of local authorities, and in particular 
the localisation of both Council Tax support and business rates, added further 
to the element of uncertainty and the risks being faced and managed. 

 
The Autumn Budget Statement (ABS) 

 
2.5. The Chancellor of the Exchequer presented his Autumn Statement to the 

House of Commons on 5th December 2013.  The ABS has had considerable 
national exposure since its announcement, through the national press and 
from various national organisations.  The Chancellor told the House that the 
forecast for the general economic environment was improved, and this is 
reflected in forecasts from the Office for Budget Responsibility.  A summary of 
the ABS is set out in Appendix A. 
 

2.6. There were a number of announcements relating to business rates.  As 
Cabinet will be aware, business rates was localised from 1 April, with the 
funding moving to local authorities, although in London, only 30% is actually 
retained locally.  One of the key aspects is a cap on the rise in the business 
rates multiplier, which has in the past been driven by the rise in RPI, but for 
next year, will be capped at 2%. 

 
2.7. These changes will impact on the level of business rates to be collected by, 

and therefore retained by, local authorities.  The Secretary of State has 
announced that these changes will be funded in full, although it is not, as yet, 
clear how this funding will be provided.  The likelihood is that this will be 
through a Section 31 grant, but the details are awaited.  This, of course, is not 
without risk, as the withdrawal of this funding at some future point potentially 
leaves a funding gap, due to the cumulative effect of the non-application of the 
correct level of inflationary rises. 

Page 7



$damted1z.doc 

 
2.8. The key points of the ABS impacting on local government were as follows: 
 

• Further reductions in public sector expenditure for 2014/15 and 2015/16 
• Protection for local government to enable authorities to deliver a further 

Council Tax freeze 
• Potential impact on grants allocated by government departments facing 

further reductions 
• Removal of £70m from New Homes Bonus (NHB) from London authorities 

(but none elsewhere) to finance the London Local Enterprise Partnership 
(which will be overseen by the Mayor) 

• Restrictions on public sector pay will inevitably be reflected in future 
funding levels 

• Use of funds from asset disposals to finance the cost of reforming services 
(although this would clearly prevent those funds from being used for capital 
investment purposes) 

• Free school lunches for all pupils in Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 
 

2.9. The protection afforded to local authorities, given the scale of reductions 
already faced, being the highest area of funding cuts, is welcomed.  There are 
risks arising over the changes to the business rates system, although these 
may not become an issue until beyond the next year or so.  The “top-slice” of 
NHB, previously announced as a national change, will only now apply to 
London boroughs, which seems illogical, and reinforces the caution with which 
this particular funding stream needs to be treated. 
 

2.10. The ABS has subsequently fed into the announcement of the Local 
Government Financial Settlement, which is addressed below. 

 
Local Government Financial Settlement (LGFS) 

 
2.11. Details of the provisional settlement were announced on 18th December, 

which was as expected but, as Cabinet has been made aware, is very late in 
the context of the Council’s budget-setting process, for the second year 
running.  The settlement covers a two year period, for both 2014/15 and 
2015/16.  This second year is the last covered by the current Comprehensive 
Spending Review. 
 

2.12. There were fundamental changes to the funding system introduced in April 
2013.  The new system is now bedding down, although there have been 
further changes, with those mainly affecting the new business rates system 
but also impacting on the way the basic RSG is determined.  It has therefore 
again been necessary for officers to review the details, working in conjunction 
with colleagues elsewhere, to assess the impact of the settlement on the 
current budget strategy. 

 
2.13. A summary of the settlement is set out in Appendix B.  The main points 

affecting local government in general, and Havering in particular, are set out 
below; a fuller explanation of these key elements then follows: 

  

Page 8



$damted1z.doc 

• The settlement again covers a two year period, 2014/15 and 2015/16 
• There is an average reduction in “spending power” of 2.9% 
• Local authorities are exempt from the latest Government funding cuts 
• Nationally, the spending control total is reducing by £5.6bn, or just over 

22% 
• Havering’s revenue support grant (RSG) will reduce by £15m over the two 

years 
• The existing Council Tax freeze grants for 2011/12 and 2013.14 are being 

rolled up into mainstream funding (the grant for 2012/13 has ceased). 
 
Settlement Periods and Final Announcement 
 
2.14. The consultation period for the LGFS runs until 15th January, a week prior to 

the Cabinet meeting where this report is being considered.  It is anticipated 
that the final settlement will be announced around 2 weeks after consultation 
closes, in common with earlier years, though a definitive date has yet to be 
confirmed.  This is potentially too late for inclusion in the February Cabinet 
report.  It will therefore be necessary to update Cabinet at that meeting if there 
are any material changes to Havering’s settlement, or simply to confirm the 
position as set out in the provisional settlement. 

 
National Position 
 
2.15. In a similar manner to the previous two years, the Government’s headlines 

focus on comparative figures concerning a local authority’s “revenue spending 
power”.  Local authorities will face an average reduction in spending power of 
2.9%; and that no authority would experience a decrease of more than 6.9%.  
Havering’s comparable reduction in 2014/15 is 0.85%, but with an increase in 
2015/16 of 1.2%.  These figures mask the actual change in mainstream 
revenue support grant, as they includes changes in New Homes Bonus and 
social care funding, as set out later in this report; hence the apparent increase 
in the second year.  In real terms, there is a continued reduction in 
mainstream grant funding. 
 

2.16. The Local Government control total for 2013/14 has been adjusted to £26.3bn, 
down from £27.2bn.  This will reduce over subsequent years to £23.8bn in 
2014/15, and then £20.8bn in 2015/16.  This equates to an overall reduction of 
22.5%.  These figures reflect Government announcements as part of the 2012 
and 2013 Autumn Budget Statements, but also the further review undertaken 
during the Summer months of 2013. 

 
Havering’s Grant Funding 
 
2.17. The provisional funding allocation is used to determine both Havering’s 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Business Rate Baseline (BRB). This 
comprises of the current four-block formula grant model which has been 
frozen since last year’s settlement and incorporates £31.2m of rolled in grants. 
This equates to a provisional Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) for 
2014/15 of £69.658m (£60.753m for 2015/16) compared to a 2013/14 
equivalent of £75.569m. 

Page 9



$damted1z.doc 

 
2.18. These figures as stated included both RSG and BRB.  The equivalent figures 

for RSG alone, which forms the core mainstream grant to the Council, shows 
a reduction from £45.4m in 2013/14 to £38.9m in 2014/15, and then £29.1m in 
2015/15.  These equate to successive reductions of around £6.5m and £9.8m 
respectively.  The reduction in core RSG grant is mainly due to the reductions 
placed on local authorities through the Autumn Statement in 2012 and the 
Spending Round in 2013.  Due to the formula being locked in and the 2% 
increase in business rates, each authority’s core RSG allocation is being 
scaled by 33%.  The funding figures now include the rolling in of Council Tax 
freeze grants for 2011/12 and 2013/14, adjustments relating to the treatment 
of New Homes Bonus, and further reductions to the element of RSG relating 
to Early Intervention Grant. 

 
2.19. Havering’s grant funding remains one of the lowest grant-per-head allocations 

despite being one of the largest boroughs in London with the highest 
proportion of elderly population.  With the basis of calculation of RSG now 
effectively frozen, there would seem to be little prospect of any significant 
change in this position.  This issue is addressed later in this report. 
 

2.20. Compared to the previous assessment of the likely levels of grant funding, the 
settlement for 2014/15 is exactly in line with previous forecasts.  As such, 
there is no major impact on the budget strategy for the remaining year of the 
current cycle.  This is reflected in the proposed approach to budget setting for 
that year, with just a small handful of minor items set out later in this report 
 

2.21. However, the subsequent reduction for 2015/16 is around £2m higher than 
anticipated a year ago, and over £1m higher from the revised position over the 
Summer.  Cabinet were advised in September that the reduction in funding in 
that year could be as high as £9m, although the report did indicate that there 
were considerable uncertainties over the treatment of NHS support for social 
care funding.  The report went to restate the likelihood of significant funding 
cuts in 2015/16, and almost certainly 2016/17, and that the Council’s long term 
strategy would have to be developed with those reductions in mind. 
 

2.22. Whether this means the forecast gap for the coming four year period will now 
be higher, or whether this simply means that the phasing of the gap is 
different, with a bigger peak in the first year, is speculative, and this is unlikely 
to become clear until the next Comprehensive Spending Review is published, 
which is likely to be some time after the 2015 General Election. 
 

2.23. What this does, however, mean, is that the budget gap being addressed in 
2015/16 will be even higher than had originally been expected, possibly as 
much as £20m.  This underpins the need to develop proposals to bridge this 
gap over the coming months, for consideration by Cabinet, as there will clearly 
be a lead-in time necessary to implement a new budget strategy and deliver a 
new savings plan. 
 

2.24. One consequence of changes in the make-up of overall funding is the 
treatment of Council Tax Support (CTS, previously benefits).  Cabinet will 

Page 10



$damted1z.doc 

recall that this was localised with effect from April 2013, with local authorities 
responsible for setting their own schemes, and with specific funding being 
allocated (with a commensurate adjustment to the Council Tax base 
calculation). 
 

2.25. As part of the 2014/15 calculation, the CTS grant which was introduced in 
2013/14 has now been completely rolled up into the formula grant and has 
been scaled using the same methodology as the core grant, as set out in 
Appendix B.  The Government has maintained that this funding (which had 
already been subject to a 10% reduction at the point of localisation) has been 
preserved in full as part of formula grant.  However, it is officers’ view that this 
has, in fact, been subject to the same methodology applied to formula grant, 
with the result being that it has effectively been reduced, and by a significant 
level over the next two years.  This means a bigger burden now falls on local 
authorities, and thus their local taxpayers.  It is intended to highlight this at the 
imminent meeting with the Minister. 
 

Business Rates 
 

2.26. As Cabinet will be aware, the new funding system incorporates the localisation 
of business rates.  However, London local authorities only retain 30% of their 
local taxation yield; the remainder is split between the Government (50%) and 
the GLA (20%).  There is also a detailed assessment of projected business 
rates figures as part of the new system.  Authorities are classed as either tariff 
(pay in to Government) or top-up (receive payment from Government).  The 
base figures for Havering for 2014/15, and comparative figures, are as follows: 
 
 2013/14 

£m 
2014/15 
£m 

Funding Baseline 30.2 30.8 
Business Rates Baseline 21.2 21.6 
Top-up 9.0 9.2 
 

2.27. As previously reported to Cabinet, the new system allows authorities to pool 
their business rates.  .On 31st October 2013, Havering (as part of the 
proposed pool) submitted an application to pool its business rates with 
Thurrock, Basildon and Barking & Dagenham.  As part of the settlement 
announcement, our application has been approved and from April 2014, 
Havering will be able to share in the growth expected in the South Essex 
region.  Pooling provides the opportunity to retain growth generated in other 
local authorities by the removal of the additional levy some authorities are 
required to pay over to the Department of Communities and Local 
Government.  This saving from the reduction or removal of the levy can be 
shared between all four pool members. 
 

2.28. From initial estimates provided, the pool may be able to generate in excess of 
£11m over the next four years dependent on Government policy surrounding 
Small Business Rates Relief.  There are a large number of potential 
developments within South Essex for the pool to benefit including the 
expansion to Lakeside and the creation of the deep sea port in Thurrock which 

Page 11



$damted1z.doc 

could provide significant growth.  Based on the terms of the agreed 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), Havering will be able to keep between 
18% / 19% (around £2m) of the reduced levy from Thurrock or Basildon whilst 
keeping any growth in Havering’s local share in full.  
 

2.29. In addition, the MoU sets the key principles that “No Authority will be receive 
from business rates retention a lower level of funding than they would have 
received without the pool”.  The risks associated with the pooling arrangement 
are limited as the pool would need to see large scale reduction in business 
rates in order for any financial risk to come into effect.  However, it is highly 
unlikely that any authority will see such a reduction in business rates within the 
terms of the pool; a safety net along the same lines of the Government’s 
proposals is currently available. 
 

2.30. The full benefits from pooling will take time to come to fruition, so at this stage, 
it is proposed that no account will be taken within the 2014/15 budget, in part, 
due to the scale of future budget gap beyond that year.  This will therefore be 
reflected as part of the budget setting process for 2015/16 and beyond. 
 

2.31. As indicated above, as part of the ABS, a package of measures was 
announced relating to business rates; this included a cap on the annual rise, 
with the limit being set at 2%, rather than applying the increase in RPI, which 
stood at 3.2%.  The Government has set the provisional small business and 
main non-domestic multipliers for 2014/15 as 47.1p and 48.2p (these are 
currently 46.2p and 47.1p respectively).  Havering has no influence on the 
multiplier used to determine the business rate charge as this is based on 
September’s RPI figure, or as is now the case, the cap set by Government. 
 

2.32. Mindful of the impact of appeals on business rates yield, which is now much 
more relevant to local authorities, the Government has also commenced a 
consultation process on reforms to the business rates appeal process.  This 
consultation is open until 3rd March 2014.  Cabinet is asked to delegate 
approval of the Council’s response to the Cabinet Member for Value. 
 

Council Tax Base 
 
2.33. The new funding system also saw a change in the basis of calculation of the 

Council Tax base.  This is the estimated number of equivalent band D 
properties.  The calculation has been affected by the changes relating to 
Council Tax support, as well as a general rise in the number of properties 
within the borough, which in turn reflects the number of new developments in 
housing in Havering.  The estimated base for next year has been set at 
80,183.  Historic increases have been quite small, reflecting the static position 
with properties within the borough, but the latest figure reflects recent rises in 
property numbers. 

 
Specific Grants 
 
2.34. As previously reported to Cabinet during recent budget cycles, there have 

been major changes to the system of specific grants.  This resulted in either 

Page 12



$damted1z.doc 

the merger of, or in most case, cessation of, funding streams.  This has been 
reflected in the Council’s budget for the last three years.  This trend continued 
with the migration to the new funding regime, examples of these were set out 
in the previous report to Cabinet. 

 
2.35. All remaining specific grants – where funding details have so far been 

announced – have been listed, alongside their current year equivalents, to 
quantify how the changes in the funding system impact on the various funding 
streams.  These are set out in Appendix C.  This list contains a number of 
gaps, as further announcements are awaited, and a more up-to-date version 
will be included in the February report.   

 
2.36. One area where there has been a reduction in funding is the funding for the 

administration of the Housing Benefits system.  Havering is expected to see 
an overall reduction in funding of over £150k in 2014/5; the reason for this 
reduction is summarised below. 
 

• All authorities would have experienced a reduction of 2.9% due to the 
£10.5m reduction in total grant. 

• Due to the floors / ceilings / damping / capping effect, those authorities who 
have a perceived higher need will not see any reduction at the expense of 
other authorities. 

• The reason why Havering loses out compared to other neighbouring 
boroughs is the make-up of our caseloads and the weightings behind it. 
(i.e. 50% of Havering’s caseload is in regards to LA council tenant - Social 
Rented Sector  which only picks  up  the smallest weighting. This 
compared to Merton (who has less overall caseload than ourselves) has 
only 0.4% under the same category. Therefore despite a lower caseload, 
Merton receives a greater grant allocation than ourselves due to the higher 
weightings placed on those categories. 

 
2.37. Assuming DWP will pass on any further departmental cuts through this grant, 

there are likely to be further reductions that continue to disproportionately 
affect Havering (though probably not as great as the ones we have seen in 
2014/15). There is also a risk that the Council Tax Support element will be 
rolled into the formula grant which could face further reductions in the coming 
years.  Inner London Boroughs are protected – due to the large weighting 
associated to their area and labour cost adjustments – and amongst the Outer 
London Boroughs, our caseload has a higher proportion of Council Tenants 
than others.  

 
Dedicated Schools Grant & Schools Funding 
 
2.38. The Government’s school funding reforms were introduced in 2013-14 to 

address inconsistencies in the formula used by the DFE (Department for 
Education) to allocate funding to LAs for schools and the formula used by LAs 
to allocate funding to schools and academies.  The arrangements for the two 
year period 2013-2015 are intended as a step towards a national funding 
formula which will ensure that similar pupils will attract similar amounts of 
funding no matter where they go to school in the country. 

Page 13



$damted1z.doc 

 
2.39. The funding for schools and some central provision is funded through the 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) in four “blocks”.  These are Early Years, High 
Needs, Schools and Additions (additional funding for 2 year old provision). 
 

2.40. The DSG allocations to LAs were announced on 19th December 2013.  
Havering’s allocation is £193.117m compared to £189.595 in 2013-14.  The 
increase reflects an increase in pupil numbers.  The funding for each block is 
set out below. 

 
Year Schools Block Early Years Block High 

Needs 
Block 

Additions 
and cash 
floor 

Total 
DSG 

 GUF per 
pupil          
(£) 

Allocation 
(£m) 

GUF per 
pupil           
(£) 

Allocation 
(£m) 

Allocation 
(£m) 

Allocation 
(£m) 

Allocation 
(£m) 

 
2014-15 

 
4,726.54 

 
163.122 

 
3,979.94 

 
8.513 

 
18.328 

 
3.154 

 
193.117 

 
2013-14 

 
4,726.54 

 
160.641 

 
3,979.94 

 
8.513 

 
18.038 

 
2.403 

 
189.595 

 
Notes:  
Early Years allocations will be updated for 2013-14 and 2014-15 based on revised data from January 
2014 and 2015 censuses respectively to reflect actual participation during the year. 
 
The High Needs allocation is subject to the outcome of a data submission to the DFE. 

 
The £3.154m of additions is as follows: 

 £m 
Funding for increased target for 2 year old free entitlement 2.985 
2 year old trajectory funding 0.351 
Newly Qualified teacher Funding 0.052 
Deduction for Carbon Reduction Credit Scheme -0.235 
Total 3.154 

 
2.41. The majority of the Schools Block is allocated through a funding formula to 

schools for the financial year April to March and is used to calculate the 
amount that is recouped by the DFE for academies which are funded direct 
from the EFA for their financial year September to August.  The formula is 
based on a limited number of factors prescribed by the DFE.  Any reductions 
in the funding to schools through this formula are protected at -1.5% per pupil 
against 2013-14 funding. 
 

2.42. The amount available for allocation to schools through the formula is after 
deducting an amount that is centrally retained for LA responsibilities such as: 
a contingency for supporting pupil growth and schools with falling rolls, school 
admissions administration and the servicing of the schools funding forum.  
After consultation with schools the total amount has been agreed for central 
retention is £3.855m.  The process of agreeing all funding allocations follows a 
consultation process with all schools and with the Schools Funding Forum. 
 

Page 14



$damted1z.doc 

2.43. In addition to the funding provided to schools from the DSG, they receive 
additional funding through the Pupil Premium to address low attainment of 
pupils from low income families and areas of high deprivation.  For financial 
year 2014-15, the Pupil Premium the rates are as follows: 

Primary age pupils:  £1,300 

Secondary age pupils:     £935 

Looked After Children:  £1,900 

The criteria for the £1,900 has been extended to children who: 
• Have been looked after for 1 day or more  
• Are adopted after leaving care 
• Leave care under a Special Guardianship Order or a Residence 

Order.  
 
Public Health 
 
2.44. This function transferred to local authorities with effect from 1st April 2013, as 

had previously been separately reported to Cabinet.  Havering’s allocation is 
£8,833,400 for 2013/14 and £9,716,700 for 2014/15.  The funding allocated is 
a specific, ringfenced grant, and therefore these funds can only be expended 
for the purposes of public health services.  The 2014/15 figure has a higher 
opening baseline, based on the formula applied. 
 

2.45. The terms and conditions relating to the grant have recently been issued for 
financial year 2014/15.  These have been under review by officers as the 
extent to which this grant funding can be applied is now becoming more 
apparent.  This process has included discussions with other authorities over 
the approach they are now taking with this funding. 
 

2.46. With this in mind, it is proposed to develop a draft spending plan for this grant 
for 2014/15, for consultation with the Health & Wellbeing Board, with authority 
to approve the final plan being delegated to the Cabinet Members for 
Individuals and Value.  Cabinet is therefore asked to agree this approach. 

 
Overall Impact on Havering 
 
2.47. The new funding system introduced with effect from April 2013 has, as 

Cabinet is aware, proved to be extremely complex, difficult to understand and 
interpret, and the fact that the announcement and the associated 
documentation were released extremely late in the budget-setting process for 
2013/14 made that a much more difficult process than in previous years.  
Whilst the new system is gradually bedding down, there have already been 
changes in the way business rates will be determined, and a further change in 
the treatment of New Homes Bonus.  All of which continue to emphasise the 
volatility of the system for funding local authorities, and the need for final 
prudence and cautious planning. 

 
2.48. In broad terms, the settlement indicates a funding reduction of £6.5m in 

2014/15 and a further £9.8m in 2015/16.  The former is in line with previous 

Page 15



$damted1z.doc 

expectations; however, the latter is higher than previous figures indicated, as 
set out earlier in the report.  There is therefore no immediate impact on the 
current budget strategy for the coming year, although the reduction for future 
years is higher than had been expected. In addition, there is a further 
reduction in equivalent EIG funding, following the expected trend from the 
current year.  A small number of proposals have been drawn up and these are 
considered in the remainder of this report, alongside a number of other 
factors. 

 
2.49. The Council is in the process of considering its formal response to the 

settlement consultation and a copy of the response will be issued as a 
supplementary paper to this report.  A meeting with the Local Government 
Minister to discuss the settlement and its impact on Havering has been 
requested, and this has been scheduled for Monday 13th January.  As this 
report will have been finalised by then, the outcome will be reported verbally at 
the Cabinet meeting, and reflected in the subsequent report to Cabinet. 
 

2.50. Finally, and to underpin the depth of the national financial issues, the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer made an announcement on Monday 6th January.  
As part of his announcement, he indicated that it was the intention of the 
Conservative Party, should it be re-elected in 2015, to implement an additional 
level of savings, rising to £25 billion by 2017/18.  Although it has been stated 
that £12 billion of these savings would fall on welfare, the remainder would 
have to be achieved through further reductions in departmental spending.  
This strongly suggests even further funding reductions could be expected, and 
that in turn emphasises the importance of developing a new budget strategy. 
 

Review of Funding Drivers 
 
2.51. Prior to the release of the Local Government Finance Settlement, LG Futures 

were commissioned to review the key funding drivers affecting Havering’s 
revenue funding and to consider the scope for potential lobbying. With the 
numerous changes affecting local government finance, the system of 
allocating funding has become more opaque and highly technical.  In addition, 
a number of large scale reforms are due to be announced over the coming 
years and the need to apportion funding to cover these costs are yet to be 
decided.  Currently there are a number of avenues for Havering to lobby and 
this report is designed to summarise these options. 
 

2.52. The Local Government Financial Settlement is a highly technical method of 
allocating funding which in recent years have been more opaque with the 
introduction of localisation of business rates and the freezing of the settlement 
formulae.  Based on the current methodology, Havering has one of the lowest 
total funding per capita then nearly all its competitors or neighbouring 
authorities.  Although Havering’s ability to lobby in this area is limited due to 
Government’s stated intention to freeze formula funding until 2020/21, there is 
still the possibility that this could be reopened.  In addition, the Relative Needs 
Formula (RNF) in relation to Adult Social Care is currently being reviewed 
outside of the settlement process in order to compare the need against actual 
allocations as well as being used for other specific grants.  The RNF is also 

Page 16



$damted1z.doc 

currently being used to allocate new grant to the authority which gives added 
incentive to lobby for a fairer funding system. 

 
2.53. Although the current formula grant is frozen until 2020, any changes to the 

indicators used in the formula funding model would be worthless given the 
current flooring methodology.  Currently based on the 2013/14 formula, 
Havering’s undamped grant is reduced by £4m due to the current flooring 
methodology.  Any changes to the indicators up to the £4m would not result in 
any additional funding to Havering’s formula grant allocation.  For any 
changes in formula grant to become worthwhile (once the system is reopened 
or for indicators used in the 2020 formula grant allocation) the damping 
methodology would need to be changed.  This is a core area in regards to the 
formula grant for lobbying, without this any changes in indicators would not be 
beneficial to Havering’s formula funding.  There is still some uncertainty on 
how the flooring methodology will be incorporated into future funding allocation 
as there is the possibility that this will be loss in amongst the calculations.  The 
current methodology penalises authorities who have had to increase council 
tax to compensate for low level of grant funding.  This is basically, a “catch 22” 
scenario as without the grant funding, authorities have had to self-fund 
increases in revenue spend through increases in council tax which impacts 
Havering’s grant funding allocation through the floor calculation. 
 

2.54. There are a number of new burdens which are due to be transferred over to 
Local Government over the next few years.  The allocation for these grants will 
be significant to Havering’s frontline services and the methodology in 
distribution will be crucial.  In the past, Havering has received grant allocation 
comparable with other authorities and provide a significant better allocation 
then would have through the formula grant.  Currently although the formula 
grant is frozen, the relative needs formula is being used to allocate grant a 
number of new funding streams as opposed to other datasets previously used.  
Generally, the indicators used in the formula grant are out of date and do not 
reflect the large demographics shift seen in the borough.  There are a number 
of new bills working their way through parliament and the funding attributable 
to those have as of yet not been confirmed.  Changing or updating the 
indicators used in allocating these grant could potentially have significant 
financial benefit. 
 

2.55. Below are a number of areas where Havering’s could lobby: 
 

• Work and income benefit indicators are a major determinant of Havering’s 

Formula.  Havering’s share of funding could be increased through an 

adjustment to work and income benefit statistics to reflect low take up rates in 

London.  This is a case for regional adjustments using “informed judgement” 

which are currently used in sparsity indicators 

• Lobbying for changes to the Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) and Labour cost 

Adjustments (LCA) has the potential to benefit the authority.  The removal of 

the lower limit and increased labour cost adjustment weights which could be 

promoted through pan-London lobbying 

Page 17



$damted1z.doc 

• In the longer term, Havering would benefit from changes to certain parameters 

of the formula funding model including: reducing the level of the funding floor 

and decrease the relative size of the needs block.  This would increase’s 

Havering’s undamped grant by £1.7m 

• A number of indicators use benefit take-up in allocating funding which 

Havering currently has a low proportion of its population taking up benefits 

compared to other authorities.  The reasons behind this is unclear but worth 

reviewing.  The increase in claimant for Government funded benefits could 

increase Havering deprivation indicators and provide Havering with a higher 

grant allocation 

• As announced in the 2013 Spending Round, the New Homes Bonus was due 

to reduce by £400m across the country, however, since the 2013 Autumn 

Statement it was decided only to top-slice the grant from London authorities to 

the London Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  There is London wide support of 

the removal of this decision which will potentially cost Havering in excess of 

£1.3m 

• The formula grant is locked-in until 2020/21 and for any changes in the 

indicators to be financial beneficial to Havering’s formula grant funding, the 

current funding methodology would need to be changed.  The current damping 

methodology has become out of date with some authorities receiving millions 

of pounds of funding more than their relative needs.  This has also contributed 

to huge cliff edges between neighbouring authorities which sees some 

authorities receiving 3 times the amount of funding than Havering just by a 

change in postcode. 

 
2.56. There are a number of potential options to lobby. Some of which can shared 

through a pan-London approach and some directly linked to Havering at the 
detriment of other London authorities. Havering has constantly received a 
better funding allocation through specific grants than through the formula grant 
system however with the increase use of the relative need formula for new 
grants; the gap is beginning to close. Lobbying for some of the points above is 
not only key to increasing Havering’s funding in line with the needs of the 
borough but also to keep to the same equivalent funding as we see today. 

 
3. PROPOSALS – REVENUE BUDGET 
 
3.1. In broad terms, the approach adopted by the Council provides for an 

assessment of the Council’s Living Ambition priorities in relation to its Medium 
Term Financial Strategy and corporate goals, and for resources to be 
allocated to those areas of the highest priority.  Whilst the general economic 
climate and financial outlook have remained highly challenging, the focus of 
the Council’s budget will need to be on significant levels of savings and only 
any material unavoidable pressures, with little scope for any additional 
investment.  The efficiency savings already identified have the prime 
objectives of allowing the redirection of resources to areas of higher priority, 

Page 18



$damted1z.doc 

the preservation of priority services, and the minimisation of the impact of 
Council Tax on our local community. 

 
Progress with Proposals Already Agreed 
 
3.2. As stated earlier in this report, Cabinet previously agreed reports in July 2010 

and July 2011, set out a series of proposals designed to bridge the forecast 
budget gap.  These set out proposals totalling around £35m (excluding the 
Council Tax base effect, which is accounted for separately), spread over 
financial years as follows: 

 
 2011/12 

£m 
2012/13 
£m 

2013/14 
£m 

2014/15 
£m 

2015/16 
£m 

Cumulative 
Savings 

9.5 19.2 32.0 34.3 34.8 

 
3.3. Detailed schedules of these proposals were included in the respective Cabinet 

reports and were subject to formal consultation, including consideration at joint 
meetings of all Overview & Scrutiny meetings.  The more significant items, 
and progress generally in delivering these savings, are set out in the following 
paragraphs.  This includes a review of progress with savings in the current 
year. 
 

3.4. Cabinet also agreed a small schedule of pressures and savings items as part 
of the 2013/14 budget setting process, that impact on 2014/15.  Set out in the 
table below is a summary of which services these savings relate to, from both 
the July 2011 and February 2013 reports: 

 

  
Jul-11 Feb-13 Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Culture, Community & Economic 
Development 

436 0 436 

Children, Adults & Housing 2,225 0 2,225 

Resources 31 500 531 

Corporate Services 0 770 770 

Total 2,692 1,270 3,962 

 
3.5. There were five significant items included within the savings proposals that 

impact on the 2014/15 budget; these are shown in the table below, together 
with their current progress: 

  
Savings Item Cabinet 

Report 
Value of 
2014/15 
Savings 
£000 

Progress 

Learning disability 
services 

July 2011 700 This is the second phase of total 
savings over 2013/14 and 2014/15 
of £1.3 million. Delivery of both 
years savings is through the Adult 

Page 19



$damted1z.doc 

Social Care MTFS Learning 
Disabilities workstream.  Key 
activities underway/planned 
include: (i) commissioning of 
specialist Review agency to look at 
high cost placements; (ii) 
participation in the LGA ASCE 
programme – achieving 
efficiencies in learning disabilities 
commissioning; re-commissioning 
of block contracts and individual 
VFM contract negotiations across 
all service areas, including LD 

Older People residential 
care 

July 2011 600 This is the second phase of total 
savings over 2013/14 and 2014/15 
of £1 million.  Delivery of both 
years savings is through the Adult 
Social Care MTFS Residential 
workstream.  Key activities 
planned/underway include: (i) 
commissioning of iMPOWER to 
deliver improved 
information/signposting across 
health and social care system, to 
shift the care setting of first resort 
from residential care to community 
based solutions, including 
improved access to assistive 
technology; (ii) redesigning ‘front 
door’ between contact centre and 
ASC, to ensure timely 
assessments and right information 
/ right time (e.g. about financial 
assessment); and, (iii) review of 
admissions (to residential care) 
pathway also underway, looking at 
critical points where people can be 
diverted away from residential 
care. 
Planning for implementation of 
Care Bill, Better Care Fund, and 
analysis of future demographic 
pressures underway, including 
impact on delivery of this savings 
line. 

Traded services July 2011 450 This saving has already been 
delivered early and no further 
actions are therefore needed 

Shared 
services/collaboration 

February 
2013 

500 A shared service arrangement with 
LB Newham has been formally 

Page 20



$damted1z.doc 

agreed by Cabinet and Council 
and that will deliver the first 
element of this saving during 
2014/15 

New Homes Bonus February 
2013 

600 This is covered separately in this 
report, in section 5 

 
3.6. As previously reported to Cabinet, and as set out in the revenue monitoring 

reports, progress with the delivery of savings is kept under close scrutiny, and 
any shortfalls or slippage are also highlighted as part of the revenue 
monitoring process, and as such, will appear in the revenue monitor report.  
The majority of the savings are being delivered through service restructures, 
all of which are either well underway or have been concluded.  Both the ISS 
and CST programmes are very complex, and in the case of the both these 
programmes, there has been a slippage in delivery of savings in the current 
year; these are addressed later in the report. 

 
3.7. There is clearly a risk that it will not be possible to deliver the full level of 

savings already approved by Cabinet.  Circumstances are changing all the 
time and alongside this, so are demand for services and their associated 
costs.  Whilst the budget contains a significant contingency sum, this is 
designed to address in-year issues, and the sheer scale of the savings 
proposals and the lengthy period over which they are being implemented – 
nearly £36m over a 4 year period – mean that some slippage or shortfall has 
always been a risk. 

 
Revenue Proposals 

 
3.8. The revenue items proposed for the 2014/15 budget, and the subsequent 

year, are set out in Appendix D.  These fall broadly into the following 
categories: 

 
• Shortfall in savings that can no longer be delivered, mainly due to change 

in environment 
• Reductions in income that have become permanent 
• Impact of new legislation 
• Funding changes from external organisations (excluding levies) 
• Unavoidable growth arising from external factors. 

 
3.9. Whilst this is a relatively short list of items, it does reflect the degree of risk 

over the delivery of savings proposals on such a scale, as well as the impact 
of factors outside the Council’s control.  A prudent approach has been taken in 
assessing the potential budget gap, and this has enabled the Council to 
weather the impact of the substantial cuts in grant funding it has been faced 
with. 
 

3.10. At this stage, it is not considered necessary to identify any additional savings, 
beyond those already approved by Cabinet  There are, however, two major 
contracts, street lighting and waste collection, which are expected to give rise 
to a modest level of revenue savings.  The latter is dependent on a concurrent 

Page 21



$damted1z.doc 

report being submitted to this Cabinet meeting, the former is currently being 
analysed on the basis of the decision previously taken by Cabinet.  This will be 
reflected in the report to Cabinet in February. 

 
4. CURRENT FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
4.1. As part of its standard business processes, a robust system of budget 

monitoring is in place to ensure the Council’s financial stability.  As part of this 
process, both variances and potential risks are identified and action plans 
developed to counteract any adverse variances.  Reports are considered up 
the management chain, from cost centre managers through to Heads of 
Service, and then CMT, individually and collectively, as well as Cabinet 
Members.  Monthly reports appear on the Council’s intranet site.  Full reviews 
of the financial position are undertaken quarterly, with high risk areas being 
reviewed monthly.  Reports are on an exception basis. 

 
4.2. The most recent forecast for period 6, which is a full quarterly budget review, 

indicates that the overall revenue position was broadly balanced, with an 
overall net overspend of £573k.  The main elements of this are: 

 
Service Issue Variance 

£000 
Streetcare Overspend of £475k on parking, due to 

income shortfalls, offset by a number of 
underspends across difference services 

226 

Customer Services Delayed delivery of savings from 
transformation programme 

289 

Regulatory Overspend of £300k due to shortfall in 
income from building control 

364 

Adults Older People’s residential and nursing 
placements £396k and Learning 
Disabilities £175k, offset by various 
underspends 

419 

Learning & 
Achievement 

Overspend on Special Educational Needs 
of £512k, offset by range of underspends 

13 

Children’s Mainly due to overspends in Placements 
£202k and Leaving Care Services £242k 

710 

Asset 
Management 

Income from commercial properties 
transferred from the HRA £597k, offset by 
£239k overspend across various transport 
accounts 

-375 

Exchequer Underspend of £300k from housing 
subsidy plus underspend of £253k on 
emergency assistance scheme 

-551 

 
4.3. A further update, setting out the updated position as at period 7, will be 

included as part of the February Cabinet report.  This will include an 
assessment of whether any of the current variances are likely to have a 
sustained impact beyond the current year, although there is one such item 

Page 22



$damted1z.doc 

included in the table above, and this has therefore been included in the 
schedule of budget items for 2014/15: 
 

Item Value 
£000 

Shortfall of income from Regulatory Services, in particular 
from building control 

300 
 

 
4.4. A full review is also being undertaken of Corporate Provisions.  Cabinet will 

recall that base budget provisions have been established, with the scale of 
change in the funding system in mind.  As these changes are now bedding 
down, it is now possible to determine the robustness of the transition to the 
new system, and the impact this has had, set in the context of the last year of 
the current savings plan.  The outcome of this review will be set out in the 
February Cabinet report. 
 

4.5. As Cabinet will be aware, the budget includes a Contingency Fund.  This is to 
ensure the Council’s budget is robust, and to provide financial stability to 
enable adverse in-year variances to be overcome.  The level of the Fund is re-
assessed annually as part of the budget-setting process.  Allocations from the 
Fund are generally only made once other measures have been considered, 
and during the latter part of the year.  This is in accordance with practice of 
previous years.  Allocations made later in the year cover those items that 
cannot be contained within departmental spend, and are generally beyond 
their local control.  The Fund is designed to enable the Council to resolve any 
in-year issues that cannot otherwise be contained within approved budgets.  It 
is not however available to fund permanent, ongoing changes; these need to 
be resolved as part of the formal budget-setting process. 

 
5. OTHER KEY MATTERS 
 
Impact of Inflation 
 
5.1. As Cabinet will be aware, inflation levels have remained at their lowest point in 

many years.  The 2009 local government pay award saw a rise of around 1%, 
and further restraint in pay rises, given the economic climate, has continued, 
with no pay rise at all for 2010, 2011 and 2012.  A rise of 1% has been agreed 
for 2013 and it has been made clear the Government expects similar restraint 
in future years.  With this in mind, further provision for a 1% rise has been 
made in the 2014/15 budget. 

 

Page 23



$damted1z.doc 

5.2. Provision is being made for increases in major contracted services.  The 
proposed increases for contracted services – which mainly relate to contracts 
based on an RPI index – are broadly in line with that level, but subject to the 
specific circumstances applicable to each individual contract. For social care, 
negotiations are underway with providers, within the broad parameters set for 
the overall budget, and these are likely to be agreed prior to the start of the 
financial year.  To enable these negotiations to progress, it is recommended 
that Cabinet delegates authority to the Group Director for Children, Adults and 
Housing to agree inflation rates with social care providers. 

 
5.3. A review of fees & charges has been undertaken as part of the budget setting 

process and any rises being proposed will be reflected in the schedule 
submitted to Cabinet in February.  However, it is not proposed to increase 
fees & charges in a number of areas, where these are set by the Council.  
This includes parking services, in accordance with the Administration’s 
previous commitments.  There are a number of other areas where it is not felt 
appropriate to introduce any rise, and this will be reflected in the detailed 
budget. 

 
Interest Levels 
 
5.4. Interest rates have remained at historic lows for some considerable time.  The 

Council’s budget strategy originally assumed that there would be a recovery in 
interest levels during 2010/11.  This has not happened, and therefore the 
originally planned increase was delayed until 2013/14. 

 
5.5. There is no immediate sign of rates rising, although economic factors have 

continued to improve, suggesting there will inevitably at some point be a 
change in this position.  As historic investments come to an end, the overall 
level of interest generated has fallen.  Returns are now even lower than 12 
months previously, although paradoxically, the level of cash holdings has 
increased, the main reason being the changes brought about by the new 
funding system (this trend can be seen across all Councils, certainly in 
London, if not elsewhere).  Speculation around when interest rates will rise 
has continued, but in the wake of the Chancellor’s recent announcements, a 
majority of economists are now predicting a rate rise during 2015.  The 
Council’s current treasury advisors have indicated that, in their view, rates will 
remain static until 2016, but have also advised that the probability of an earlier 
move has risen significantly. 
 

5.6. The financial strategy assumed an increase in rates in both 2013/14 and 
2014/15; this is still felt to be deliverable through prudent financial 
management of the Council’s cash flow position, although not in full.  It is 
therefore proposed to retain this, but at a lower level, for 2014/15, with the full 
amount included in the strategy being achieved the following year.  This is not 
without a degree of risk, but given the scale of the budget gap projected for 
the coming four year period, this level of risk is felt to be acceptable. 

 
Concessionary Fares and Taxicard Scheme 
 

Page 24



$damted1z.doc 

5.7. This item has been a major factor in previous years.  Havering’s contribution 
to the freedom pass scheme currently stands at £7.661m.  An increase in the 
2014/15 TfL element for Havering of 2.71% , thereby increasing the 
contribution to £7.869m.  This equates to an additional £208k budget being 
required, which is within the sum anticipated in our financial strategy.  This 
area remains a financial risk to all London boroughs as future rises could well 
be at a similar level to those provided for in the financial strategy, and 
therefore continues to be covered in the Council’s longer term planning. 
 

5.8. The Council’s contribution to the London Taxicard scheme, which is also 
funded through London Councils, has been set at £150k for 2014/15, the 
same level as currently. 
 

 
Pension Fund 
 
5.9. The difficulties experienced nationally by pension funds in general, and the 

Local Government Pension Fund in particular, have been well publicised.  A 
variety of changes to the local government pension scheme are due to be 
implemented in April 2014. 
 

5.10. Havering’s Pension Fund has, like most if not all others in the public sector, 
been adversely affected by not only the level of liabilities, but also the impact 
of gilts on the assessment of those liabilities.  So, whilst the value of 
investments has continued to see an increase, this has been counter-
balanced by the rise in liabilities owing to historically low gilt returns.  Clearly, 
the Council cannot influence how gilts impact on the Fund, but it does have a 
responsibility to deal with this as part of its prudent financial management. 

 
5.11. A review of the investment strategy has taken place over the past year, and 

amongst other things, the strategy now encompasses potential investment in 
infrastructure, with the proviso that an appropriate return is realised on any 
such investment.  The 2013 actuarial review of the Pension Fund is also now 
well underway and initial discussions on the potential outcome have already 
taken place.  The previous budget made provision for an incremental rise of 
£500k, and this was increased to £1.5m with effect from 2013/14.  For 
financial planning purposes, a similar sum has been allowed for in future 
years. 

 
5.12. The actuary has advised that the Council will need to make additional 

investments into the pension fund over coming years, almost certainly at a 
higher level than the sum currently provided for.  His advice is that, if the 
Council were able to make a one-off cash investment, this would provide a 
suitable level of investment, and allow the Council to scale back on annual 
contributions for several years. 

 
5.13. As part of the closedown of accounts process for 2012/13, a sum was 

earmarked for investment in the pension fund as part of the strategic reserve.  
As part of the current review of corporate provisions, it is now proposed to 
make a one-off investment into the Pension Fund.  Details of the proposed 

Page 25



$damted1z.doc 

investment will be included in the report to Cabinet in February, seeking 
Cabinet’s approval for that investment. 

 
5.14. Any such investment will clearly carry a degree of risk.  Although the value of 

the Pension Fund has risen slowly over recent years, market values do rise 
and fall.  However, should the Council choose not to proceed, higher annual 
contributions would need to be made, and over a period of time, at least to the 
same overall value.  It is also probably true that the level of return potentially 
realisable from the Pension Fund is far higher than what could be achieved 
through the Council’s treasury management activities. 

 
Levying Bodies 
 
5.15. The levies are part of the Settlement and therefore need to be taken into 

account when setting the Havering element of the Council Tax.  There are a 
number of levies, but the predominant levy relates to ELWA.  The current 
overall levy budget is around £12.4 million, of which ELWA accounts for £11.7 
million.  At this stage, no account has been taken of any changes in the 
distribution of levies arising from the changes in Council Tax base referred to 
earlier in this report. 

 
ELWA 

 
5.16. Provision has broadly been made within the council’s financial strategy for 

increases in the ELWA levy of around £1m per annum over the budget 
window the Council now operates.  The Authority considered a report on its 
financial prospects at its meeting in December.  Whilst the final budget will 
reflect more recent tonnage information and updated financial information, the 
report indicated that the provisional levy proposals over the coming three 
years will now be lower than previously allowed for. 

 
5.17. At this stage, whilst officers are awaiting the final budget report, which is 

subject to deliberations by ELWA, the reduced forecast levy has been 
included as part of the overall budget build process. At the point at which 
ELWA approves its final budget, due account will need to be taken of this in 
the Council’s own budget setting process. 
 
Other Bodies 

 
5.18. Of the remaining levying bodies, for planning purposes, a prudent approach 

has been taken to the level of increase that might be expected, pending 
notification of the planned rises. 

 
London Councils Subscription and London Boroughs Grants Scheme (LBGS) 
 
5.19. The core subscriptions are to be held at existing levels for 2014/15, being 

£143k, with a one off rebate for all contributing authorities, at a level of £38k 
for Havering.  The contribution to the LBGS is marginally reduced by £1k to 
£259k.  This scheme has also released a one off rebate at £23k.  As indicated, 
the reductions are a one-off and therefore it is recommended that the base 

Page 26



$damted1z.doc 

budget is not adjusted as these funds will no doubt be required in the 2015/16 
budget cycle. 

 
Transformation Funding 
 
5.20. Cabinet will recall that, as part of the Council’s approach to delivering its 

transformation programme, a reserve was established to finance a wide range 
of activity, for example the Internal Shared Services programme.  These 
reserve funds supplemented a base budget sum created several years ago of 
£1m.  It was originally planned that this sum would be removed from the 
budget in 2013/14.  However, given the inevitable continuation of the 
Government’s austerity programme, it is highly likely that local authorities will 
be engaged in transformation activity for a considerably extended period, 
possibly for the remainder of the decade.  As part of the last budget-setting 
process, Cabinet agreed to retain this budget. 

 
5.21. Whilst activity has continued with most of the original transformation 

programmes during 2013/14, these are now effectively winding down.  The 
shared service programme with Newham, alongside the One Oracle 
programme, has been running for some time, and Cabinet approved a report 
on the shared service arrangement in November. 

 
5.22. As part of the report to Cabinet in September, the financial prospects for the 

four year period, starting in 2015/16, were set out.  Cabinet were advised that, 
based on officers’ assessment of the impact of further funding cuts, coupled 
with the potential impact of demographic growth and inflation, the forecast 
budget gap was in the region of £60m.  Delivering further savings will 
therefore require a considerable level of support, with the financial 
consequences this would give rise to. 

 
5.23. Alongside the base budget sum, it is also likely that additional, one-off funds 

will be needed.  This will enable the Council to finance any further projects and 
to ensure funds are available for any further redundancy costs, should these 
arise, beyond the current programme.  With this in mind, it is proposed that 
any underspends from the Corporate Contingency Fund, from the retained 
base budget sum of £1m, and from any service revenue underspends, are 
allocated to the Strategic Reserve.  Cabinet is asked to endorse this 
approach. 
 

5.24. As previously advised to Cabinet, it is intended to develop a four year budget 
strategy over the coming months.  This will be brought to Cabinet for approval 
and onward recommendation to Council during the Summer of 2014.  This will 
include an assessment of the resources – financial and otherwise – needed to 
deliver a new programme of savings and service transformation. 

 
New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

 
5.25. This funding stream was created for financial year 2011/12.  Although it has 

been classed as a new funding stream, it is effectively money top-sliced from 
the overall funding “pot”.  As the national NHB pot grows, the overall pot for 

Page 27



$damted1z.doc 

revenue support grant reduces.  The current budget assumes an approximate 
base sum of £1.8m in 2013/14, rising to an estimated £2.4m in 2014/15, and 
this sum has been built into the budget build process for next year. 
 

5.26. The updated figures for 2014/15 have recently been released.  These are in 
line with officers’ estimates.  The forecast figure is now £3.4m, expected to 
rise to around £4.1m in 2015/16.  This is due to a bigger than originally 
forecast rise in property numbers, which form the basis for the NHB 
calculation.  However, as pointed out in the September Cabinet report, there is 
a national adjustment to the overall NHB pot, which would reduce the 
Havering allocation.  In addition, there is a further top-slice within London 
arising from the Autumn Budget Statement and subsequent announcements. 
 

5.27. The impact of these adjustments is that the level of NHB in Havering is 
expected to fall by around £1.3m to £1.4m, leaving a base sum of around 
£2.7m to £2.8m.  With this degree of uncertainty in mind, it is not felt prudent 
to increase the base budget sum beyond the level originally allowed for.    
Once the position becomes clearer for 2015/16, then the base budget can be 
reviewed and adjusted accordingly. 
 

5.28. This leaves around £1m in NHB which is available for future one-off 
investment in 2014/15.  It is therefore proposed that this sum should be 
allocated to a small number of one-off projects in 2014/15, as follows: 
 

• Harrow Lodge Park; clearance works to the lake to remove silt, re-
invigorate the lake, and to deal with rodent infestation. Estimated cost 
£300k 

• Streetcare; additional investment of £500k in footpaths, carriageways, 
etc 

• Broxhill Park; development of all-weather sports pitch to complement 
the overall park design, estimated cost £500k, part funded from grant 
monies, leaving a residual revenue contribution of £200k. 

 

5.29. There is an alternative, which is to increase the base budget for 2014/15 and 
take the additional £1m as a budget saving.  However, should the expected 
change then occur in 2015/16, this would create an immediate budget 
pressure of around £600k to £700k.  Given the scale of the gap from that year 
onwards, this course of action is not recommended. 

 

Better Care Funding 
 
5.30. The Better Care Fund (BCF), formerly known as the Integration 

Transformation Fund, and before that NHS support for social care, will come 
into effect from 2015/16.  This will underpin health and social care integration, 
providing opportunity to transform local services leading to better outcomes.  
The fund will also help manage pressures to enable longer term sustainability.  
The June 2013 spending round set out that £3.8 billion is to be deployed in 
2015/16, to be spent locally on health and care. 
 

Page 28



$damted1z.doc 

5.31. In recent years Health funding to support social care has transferred to Local 
Authorities under section 256 agreements.  Havering’s 2013/14 allocation was 
£3.599m. Plans to utilise this funding were signed off by the Health and Well 
Being Board and submitted to NHS England.     
 

5.32. In 2014/15, in addition to the £900m transfer already planned from the NHS to 
adult social care, a further £200m will transfer to enable localities to prepare 
for the BCF in 2015/16.  NHS England will only pay out the additional £200m 
to councils that have jointly agreed and signed off two-year plans for the BCF.   
Havering’s allocation using the social care relative needs formula (RNF) is 
expected to be £4.609m.  This will be subject to the same conditions attached 
to the existing transfer.  This sum has been arrived at as follows: 
 

 

 National Budget 
£m 

Havering Allocation 
£m 

2013/14 859 3.599 
2014/15 – base sum 900 3.771 
2014/15 – additional sum 200 0.838 
2014/15 – TOTAL  4.609 

 

5.33. The £3.8bn BCF fund will be created from: 
 
• £1.9bn of NHS funding 
• £1.9bn based on existing funding in 2014/15 that is allocated across the 

health 
and the wider care system. This will comprise: 
• £1.1bn existing transfer from health to adult social care.  
• £130m Carers’ Break funding 
• £300m CCG reablement funding 
• £354m capital funding (including £220m Disabled Facilities Grant). 
 

5.34. Havering’s 2015/16 BCF allocation is expected to be £15.5m, which will 
include the Disabilities Facilities Grant (£829k) and social care capital (£560k).  
The Fund will be put into a pooled budget under Section 75, there will be a 
joint governance arrangement between the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
Local Authority.  A condition of accessing the funding is that there must be 
joint spending plans and these plans must meet certain requirements. 
 

5.35. The spending round indicated that £1bn of the £3.8bn will be linked to 
achieving outcomes, both national and local.  Half of the funding is expected 
to be released in April 2015.  £250m of this will depend on progress against 
four of the national conditions, and £250m will relate to performance against a 
number of national and locally determined metrics during 2014/15.  The 
remainder (£500m) will be released in October 2015, and will relate to further 
progress against the national and locally determined metrics. 
 

5.36. It was announced as part of the Spending Round that the BCF would include 
funding for costs to councils resulting from care and support reform (£50m 

Page 29



$damted1z.doc 

capital and £135m revenue).  This money is not ring-fenced, but local plans 
should show how the new duties are being met. 
 

5.37. Health and Wellbeing Boards have to provide a first cut of their better care 
plan template by 14 February 2014, with revised versions by 4 April 2014.  
Funding will be routed through NHS England to protect the overall level of 
health spending and ensure a process that works coherently with wider NHS 
funding arrangements. 
 

Education Services Grant 
 
5.38.  Commencing in 2013-14 there are new Government funding arrangements 

for education services provided by local authorities and academies.  This is 
through an Education Services Grant (ESG) calculated on a per pupil basis 
according to the number of pupils for whom a local authority or academy is 
responsible. 
 

5.39. The ESG is intended to fund both LAs and academies for the provision of a 
range of services and statutory functions including education welfare, school 
improvement, music services, asset management, determination of terms and 
conditions of service of staff, early retirement and redundancy costs, 
producing financial accounts and internal auditing. 
 

5.40. The grant is allocated to local authorities on the basis of £113.17 per pupil 
(£116.46 in 2013-14) in maintained primary and secondary schools, £480.97 
(£494.96) for pupils attending maintained special schools and £424.38 
(£436.73) for those in alternative provision.  £15 (unchanged from 2013-14) is 
allocated to LAs for all pupils regardless of whether they attend academies. 
 

5.41. The initial allocation for Havering for 2014-15 is £3,326,218 compared to an 
initial allocation of £3,510,598 in 2013-14.  The reduction is due to an increase 
in the number of schools that became academies during the year and a 
reduction in the per pupil rate (see the paragraph above). 
 

5.42. The number of academies and maintained schools in Havering as at January 
2014 is as follows: 
 

 Primary Secondary Special Total 
Maintained 55 4 3 62 
Academies 4 14 0 18 
Total 59 18 3 80 
 

5.43. In addition, an academy order has been received from the Secretary of State 
for Education for another primary school with an expected transfer date of 1st 
April 2014. 
 

5.44. A complication of the grant is that it is recalculated on a quarterly basis to 
reflect the number of pupils that attend academies; it therefore reduces during 
the year each time a school becomes an academy.  Whilst this may 
necessitate further savings, it will be difficult to anticipate these and they will 

Page 30



$damted1z.doc 

take time to develop and implement.  There is also an issue over the point at 
which the critical mass of the service means that it is not feasible to deliver 
any further savings and still deliver the council’s statutory responsibilities in 
this area. 
 

5.45. The costs in delivering statutory services fall mainly, although not exclusively 
within the Learning and Achievement Service.  Grant reductions will also affect 
asset management services and central services recharged to Learning and 
Achievement.  To meet cost grant reductions in 2013-14 there was a 
significant restructure within Learning and Achievement saving approximately 
£1.3m and further savings to meet 2014-15 grant reductions are being 
considered. 
 

Social Care Legislation 
 
5.46. There are fundamental changes imminent to social care functions, aside from 

those considered above.  In particular, the Care & Support Bill and the 
Children & Families Bill, both of which are expected to receive Royal Assent 
some during early 2014, will impact on the provision of services, and the 
development of the future budget strategy.  The background to this legislation 
is set out below; at this stage, it is extremely difficult to assess what impact 
these changes will have, financially or otherwise.  Given the likely 
demographic demand for social care services in the future, this area will need 
to be kept under close scrutiny, and once a clearer picture has emerged, 
Cabinet will be updated accordingly.  The potential financial risks arising from 
this legislation will need to be borne in mind as part of the budget-setting 
process, and this has been factored into the risk assessment, which is 
currently being undertaken.  Any updated financial information will be included 
in the February Cabinet report. 
 
Care & Support Bill 
 

5.47. The Care and Support Bill is a major piece of legislation related to Adult Social 
Care, which is looking to consolidate exiting legislation and rewrite stature 
which dates back to 1948. As such it is far reaching and the implications are 
large. London Councils have raised concerns that levels of funding to support 
the changes proposed by the bill may not be sufficient to cover the additional 
cost that Local Authorities will have to bear, particularly in London. Whilst the 
principles endorsed within the bill are supported there will be significant cost 
implications. 
 

5.48. The Bill is in three parts; Care and Support, Care Standards, Establishing non-
departmental public bodies.  The main implications that carry a financial 
implication are: 
 
• All local authorities will have to provide a universal information and advice 

service to the local population, including advice about how to access 
independent financial advice.  

Page 31



$damted1z.doc 

• Everyone with care and support needs who is assessed will be informed of 
support available to prevent or reduce care needs and support whether or 
not they meet the eligibility threshold. 

• A cap will be set at £72,000 for the maximum contribution anyone will 
make to adult social care. People in residential care will pay a contribution 
of around £12,000 yearly towards general living expenses. The upper 
capital threshold for means-tested support will rise to £118,000 from 
2016/17. There will be a zero cap for people who turn 18 with eligible care 
and support needs. 

• A national minimum eligibility threshold will be introduced. 
• Local authorities will be required to provide, review and update an 

‘independent personal budget’ for people who have eligible care needs but 
do not meet financial criteria. This notional budget will allow the individual 
to progress towards the care cap. It will be based on the amount that the 
local authority would pay for care – not the amount the self funder might 
choose to pay. 

• The ‘deferred payments’ scheme, whereby the cost of care is offset by the 
future sale of the client’s home, will be cost neutral to local authorities and 
therefore interest and administrative fees will be allowed. 

• Where a client receives care outside the home borough, the second 
borough will be required to take the original care and support plan into 
account and to provide a written explanation if it differs.  

• The duty to prevent, delay or reduce the need for care and support will 
apply to both carers and people with care needs. 

 
5.49. It should be noted that young carers are not included in the bill – this has 

raised concern that young carers may fall into the gap between the Children 
and Families Bill and the Care Bill. 
 

5.50. The Council is currently modelling the potential financial implications and risks 
arising as a result of the new legislation, and will continue to do so as the bill 
passes through parliament.  Local implications will be largely driven by 
demography in the borough.  Part one of the Care Bill provisions (excluding 
funding reform) is due to come into force from April 2015, with the funding 
reform provisions coming into force from April 2016. 
 
Children & Families Bill 
 

5.51. The intention of the legislation is to create a more family friendly SEND 
(Special Educational Needs and Disabilities) process which draws together 
the support a child requires across education, health and care (EHC).  
Statements of Special Educational Needs, which are mainly education 
documents, will be replaced by a single plan called an Education, Health and 
Care plan.  The draft regulations and Code of Practice (COP) have now been 
published and have a September 2014 implementation date.  The following 
address some of the financial implications arising from the Bill. 
 

5.52. Local Authorities must publish a Local Offer to enable parents to understand 
what is available and how it can be accessed.  By publishing core entitlements 
and making it clear how the services can be accessed, the uptake of services 

Page 32



$damted1z.doc 

is likely to increase.  It is critical that universal services are well publicised 
through the Local Offer in order to ensure that families utilise these services 
and do not migrate to tier two and three services when they are not essential.  
This may require training and support for services like Children’s Centres but 
this would prove cost effective in the medium term.  On the plus side having a 
good comprehensive and well publicised Local Offer may mean that out of 
borough services are not requested. A good Local Offer may mean that 
parents do not request personal budgets to purchase private sector services. 
 

5.53. There must be a means by which to offer personal budgets to families which 
includes direct payments for health and education as well as social care.  This 
is a flagship proposal by the Government and it is clear that they will be 
pushing for the development of a private market so that parents can purchase 
services which are not readily available through the Local Offer.  It is not yet 
clear whether parents will have to be offered what the service costs to 
purchase or the equivalent of what is spent at the moment but given the lack 
of sufficient therapy provision this could prove costly for health unless 
sufficient service can be provided through the Local Offer. 
 

5.54. In Pathfinder areas there have been issues with the viability of block contracts 
as parents have chosen to purchase services themselves. This has lead in 
some cases to the need for double funding for example providing a direct 
payment for a family to purchase a therapy service but not reducing the cost of 
the block contract. 
 

5.55. On the plus side some Pathfinders have found that when parents understand 
the cost of the services provided for their children they can bring about better 
value for money. For example on discovering the cost of a therapy service, 
which was provided at best intermittently, parents chose to forgo the service in 
favour of some additional short break hours. Additionally funding a home 
education programme through a direct payment gives the LA more control 
over the service than would otherwise be possible. 
 

5.56. The Bill requires the setting up of an independent mediation service for 
when agreement cannot be reached.  The providers of this service must not 
be employed by the local authority.  Parents must be offered the service 
where there is a disagreement about the content of the plan although if the 
disagreement is purely about the school parents can opt for tribunal. 
 

5.57. There must be joint commissioning arrangements between education, 
health and social care in order to ensure that sufficient resources are provided 
to assess children and then provide for their needs. There must also be a 
formal mechanism for resolving complaints and difficulties between the 
agencies. 
 

5.58. There is currently no joint commissioning for SEND children’s services.  The 
therapy services provided by NELFT are not sufficient for the needs of the 
SEND children.  It is essential that the most senior officers in the LA and 
Health Commissioners work together to improve the level of therapy services.  
Entering into joint commissioning arrangements and pooling budgets whilst 

Page 33



$damted1z.doc 

essential also has the potential to be costly for the LA.  Whilst the Bill is fairly 
robust in insisting that health must provide the services required by the child to 
implement the EHC plan it will still ultimately be the responsibility of the LA to 
ensure that those services for example speech therapy required to implement 
a child’s education programme are provided. 
 

5.59. On the plus side once a joint commissioning system is in place it may indicate 
areas of service in which there is duplication or where inefficient 
commissioning has led to poor value for money both in the LA, health and 
voluntary sector. 
 

5.60. The draft Code of Practice (COP) says that there must be a single 
assessment procedure (involving parents and children) on which health, 
social care and education agree so that families do not have to repeat their 
story and appointments are kept to a minimum.  It is the LA’s responsibility to 
provide this support through key workers or similar a similar mechanism.  A 
single Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan document draws together the 
support and resources required across education, health and social care as 
well as leisure and voluntary sector activities as appropriate. The plan lasts 
from 0-25. 
 

5.61. The Pathfinders have used multi agency meetings to draw up the plan but 
have found this very costly in staff time.  Some Pathfinders have used staff 
already working with the child as key workers but have found especially for 
very young children that the work is very emotionally draining as well as time 
consuming and cannot always form part of a wider role.  Finally the plan can 
last until a young person reaches 25 and here the issue is the raising of 
expectation that young people who would not previously have received a 
service once they reach adulthood will now have an entitlement.  This does 
not appear to be the case as the entitlement only continues to 25 if the young 
person remains in education or training.  There are enormous implications for 
the funding of higher level educational needs up to 25 when currently many 
young people cease education at 19 and almost all at 23. 

 
Parking 
 
5.62. The Government announced the launch of a consultation on current local 

authority parking strategies and on options the Government is considering to 
change the balance of how parking is enforced with the aim of ensuring that 
parking strategies complement and enhance the attractiveness of our high 
streets and town centres.  This consultation runs until 14th February.  The 
Government is now inviting views on amending significant elements of local 
authority parking policy including: 
 
• Stopping the use of CCTV for on–street parking enforcement 
• Giving local communities and businesses new rights to require authorities 

to review aspects of their parking strategies such as the level of parking 
charges and whether all double-yellow lines are appropriate and necessary 
at particular locations 

Page 34



$damted1z.doc 

• Introducing limited “grace periods” where a driver has stayed in a parking 
place for a short period before issuing a parking ticket 

• Updating statutory guidance to local authorities to emphasise a less heavy-
handed approach to parking enforcement, and re-emphasise that parking 
charges and fines cannot be used to as a means to raise revenues. 

 
5.63. Potentially, this could lead to a freeze in increases in parking charges 

alongside a number of other possible changes.  At this stage, it is far from 
clear whether the financial consequences of this on local authorities would be 
compensated for, or whether authorities would be expected to cover this from 
within existing resources.  This therefore represents an additional risk, as the 
outcome will clearly not be known until after the Council has formally approved 
its 2014/15 budget. 

 
Changes in Demography 

 
5.64. Cabinet will be aware from previous reports that social care services in 

particular have been impacted by changes in demography.  In particular, the 
aging population demographic is expected to lead to an increase in demand 
for adult social care.  This issue has been reflected in the Council’s budget for 
the past two years, and due to the fluid nature and high risk will continue to be 
closely monitored.  This financial provision has been based on a detailed 
financial model, however, with continuing changes in demand, the increased 
financial pressures facing local authorities, changes in funding streams 
referred to elsewhere, and shifts in population as well as properties, this issue 
now potentially has a broader impact. 
 

5.65. Elsewhere in this report, changes in the Council’s property base – as 
measured through the Council Tax base and the New Homes Bonus – are 
highlighted.  This needs to be considered in the context of increased demand 
for schools places, as set out in the report to Cabinet in November. 
 

5.66. These factors, taken together, suggest a significant change in demography 
within Havering.  What is extremely difficult to assess is what impact this 
change will have on demand for services, and thus in turn, the associated 
resources and costs.  As a guide, the potential consequences are set out in 
the table below: 
 

Factor Impact Financial Impact 
Properties Increase in waste 

produced by households 
 
Increased traffic leading 
to more road/footway 
damage 

Higher costs for refuse 
collection, street 
cleaning, waste disposal 
Higher costs for 
highways maintenance 

School places Increase in demand for 
places leading to need 
for more classrooms 

Capital investment in 
additional classrooms 
Revenue impact falls 
directly on schools 
budgets 

Page 35



$damted1z.doc 

General population Increase in special 
educational needs 
 
Increase in residents 
requiring learning or 
mental disability support 
Increase in demand for 
parks, leisure, arts, 
culture, etc 
 
 
 
Change in population 
mix, eg nature and make 
up of families 

Increase in resource 
needs and thus service 
costs 
As above 
 
 
As above 
 
 
Potential capital 
investment, eg new 
facilities, vehicles 
As above 

 
5.67. At this stage, it is not possible to determine with any reliability the financial 

impact of potential changes.  Clearly, there will be an increase in Council Tax 
receipts, and this is factored into the base calculation.  What is much more 
difficult to assess is the cost impact these changes might have, as this 
depends on the actual nature of the shift in demand, rather than any notional 
model.  It will therefore be necessary to review any available information as 
part of the development of the new financial strategy, to ensure that, as far as 
possible, the latest information is reflected, but also that this is kept under 
review and the strategy is updated accordingly.  It is however a fact that such 
changes now represent a significant area of risk, both financial and otherwise. 
 

5.68. With that in mind, it is proposed to review and potentially increase the overall 
budget provision for growth.  The overall sum stands at £2m and has been 
assessed on the basis of demographic changes in demand for social care 
services.  The marked shift in the property base will clearly now have other 
impacts and this will need to be given due consideration as part of the budget 
setting process.  A broad assessment is currently underway and this will be 
reflected in the final budget proposals to be presented to Cabinet in February.  
It is however highly likely that the existing budget provision for demographic 
growth in social care for 2013/14 will not be required, as the combined impact 
of savings proposals, demand changes and general demographic growth have 
been absorbed within existing service budgets. 
 
Members Allowances 

 
5.69. As is customary, a report on the proposed Members Allowances scheme will 

be considered at the same time as the budget.  The Administration proposes 
to reduce the cost of Allowances, in line with reductions in spend within the 
Council, and an additional saving of £100k in 2014/15 was included 
accordingly in the budget schedules last year. 
 
Corporate Plan 
 

Page 36



$damted1z.doc 

5.70. The Corporate Plan 2011-14 sets out the Council’s Living Ambition and how 
this will be delivered through five goals for the Environment, Learning, Towns 
and Communities, Individuals and Value.  These goals, along with the 
strategic outcomes, key activities and measures/targets, are summarised in 
the ‘Plan on a Page’. 
 

5.71. The ‘Plan on a Page’ has been refreshed, in light of the progress made on the 
Corporate Plan over the past year and publication of the Annual Report in 
September – this is set out in Appendix F.  The refresh captures the Council’s 
goals and strategic objectives as follows: 
 

• Environment – community responsibility and enhanced community 
participation 

• Learning – strategic commissioning and strengthened partnership working 
between learning providers 

• Towns and Communities – resilient/self-supporting communities and an 
enterprising economy  

• Individuals –prevention/early intervention, joint commissioning/integrated 
services and access to the ‘early help offer’ for children and young people 
at risk 

• Value – evidence-led commissioning and a commitment to sharing 
services with partners. 

 

5.72. The measures/targets have been reviewed and, where required, new targets 
have been proposed for next year.  The updated ‘Plan on a Page’ will be used 
to inform service planning, ensuring all activities are linked back to the goals, 
strategic objectives and strategic outcomes of the Corporate Plan.  Cabinet is 
asked to formally approve the revised ‘Plan on a Page’ as set out in Appendix 
F. 

 
6. EXPENDITURE RESTRICTIONS AND BUDGET ROBUSTNESS 
 
Expenditure Restriction by Government 
 
6.1. The Government has previously stated that it will use its capping powers 

where necessary.  As part of the settlement announcement last year, following 
on from previous announcements, a referendum process was introduced.  The 
broad level at which this would be triggered was set at 2%, although there was 
a potential loophole around the impact of levies set by external bodies and 
how these are factored into the calculation. 
 

6.2. However, as part of the settlement announcement, and in contrast to previous 
years, DCLG are not publishing council tax referendum principles as part of 
the provisional settlement. The view of London Councils is that this is probably 
because the Local Audit and Accountability Bill has yet to complete the 
legislative process.  The Bill proposes that levies should be included in council 
tax referendum calculations and had its third reading and report stage in the 
House of Commons on 17th December.  It is now going back to the House of 
Lords for consideration of amendments with royal ascent expected in “early 

Page 37



$damted1z.doc 

2014”.  DCLG are also seeking views on the referendum levels themselves, 
this suggests a potential lowering of the current level. 

 
6.3. Clearly, those Councils choosing to avail themselves of the Council Tax freeze 

grant on offer for 2014/15 will not be affected by this.  It will however make it 
potentially quite difficult for those choosing not to do so to set a budget, when 
they could then be faced with the need to undertake a referendum. 

 
6.4. The Government has indicated that the referendum process is likely to remain 

in place for future years, although they have not committed to the actual 
percentage levels.  There does however appear little prospect for a rise 
beyond the current limit of 2%, and local authorities would need to be mindful 
of the potential cost of undertaking a referendum should they wish to consider 
triggering one, especially with the potential cost of a further billing process to 
be undertaken, should the local community reject a proposed rise, whatever 
level is to be applied. 

 
Budget Robustness/Reserves Position 
 
6.5. The Local Government Act 2003 sets out requirements in respect of Financial 

Administration, and in particular to the robustness of the budget and the 
adequacy of reserves.  The Act requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to 
report to an authority when it is making the statutory calculations required to 
determine its council tax or precept. 

 
6.6. In line with the requirements of the Act, the formal report of the CFO on 

budget robustness will be included in the February Cabinet report.  The 
authority is required to take the report into account when making the 
calculations. 

 
6.7. The General Fund Balance at 31 March 2013 was £11.8m.  Prior to making a 

final recommendation to Council, there will also be a need to further consider 
the current financial position for 2013/14.  The revenue budget strategy 
statement, as agreed by Council, sets out that the minimum level of reserves 
held will be £10m.  There is an opportunity cost of holding reserves, in 
particular the alternative use that these balances could be put to and the 
benefits that might accrue as a result.  Equally, the importance of retaining 
sufficient reserves has been emphasised by the position within social care 
services during previous financial years, and particularly so now, with the 
Council suffering an ongoing reduction in grant funding from Government. 

 
6.8. The Council’s revenue budget strategy statement requires that: 
 

• While addressing its priorities and setting a balanced and prudent budget, 
the Council will seek to keep any increase in the Council Tax to the lowest 
possible level and in line with its stated aspirations whilst maintaining 
reserves at the minimum level of £10m 
 

• And as part of that process, the Council will not utilise those reserves, or 
any reserves earmarked for specified purposes, to subsidise its budget and 

Page 38



$damted1z.doc 

reduce Council Tax levels as this is neither a sustainable nor a robust 
approach. 

 
6.9. In addition to its general reserves, the Council also holds a number of 

earmarked reserves.  At 31 March 2013, the total value of reserves stood at 
£48.7m.  Of this, a significant element had been earmarked for the corporate 
transformation programme, which is delivering much of the savings target 
agreed by the Council.  The majority of these funds have now been allocated 
to programmes and it is anticipated that a considerable element of this will 
have been expended by the end of 2013/14 in funding programme resources 
and IT investment, and over an extended period of time, redundancy costs.  A 
further element relates to strategic projects, whilst the remaining reserves 
cover a variety of purposes, including the Insurance Fund.  The final element 
relates to a reserve created for grant funds for NHS support for social care.  
Any reserves utilised as part of the budget-setting process can only be applied 
once; thereafter equivalent reductions – or increases in Council Tax – would 
still need to be found. 

 
6.10. The current advice of the Group Director Resources is that the existing level of 

general reserves can be considered to be adequate.  However, the recent and 
expected future reductions in grant funding, coupled with the need to resource 
major change programmes, emphasise the need for prudence with the 
management of reserves.  Without a sufficient level of reserves, such 
investment would only be possible from base service budgets. 

 
6.11. The Council’s external auditor has in the past emphasised the need for the 

Council to strengthen its financial health and to build in protection against 
unforeseen circumstances and to seek advice from the Chief Finance Officer 
on the adequacy of its working balance level.   The advice of CIPFA also 
needs to be borne in mind, as they have emphasised that it is important to 
stress the risks which arise should councils decide to draw down reserves to 
help fund their budgets.  This is due to the fact that most council services 
require recurring funding to meet staff and other running costs year after year.  
Reserves are however a one-off, finite source of funding; they can cover a 
shortfall in recurring funding for a specific period but, after reserves are 
exhausted, the underlying shortfall will still be there.  Due account is taken of 
this advice in assessing the need for reserves and their potential utilisation. 

 
7. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 
Background to Current Programme 
 
7.1. The Council’s overall approach to its Capital Programme has been based on a 

gradual move towards the use of prudential borrowing to finance it and 
provision for this has been reflected in the relevant budget proposals.  In more 
recent years, the duration of the planned programme has been kept relatively 
short, in recognition of the need to maximise the use of receipts, and to avoid 
additional pressure on the revenue budget. 

 

Page 39



$damted1z.doc 

7.2. Since that time, there has been a continued hold on interest rates, so 
borrowing remains relatively inexpensive.  However, it remains the case that 
the Council’s ability to generate receipts has continued to reduce.  It is 
therefore an increasing risk that receipts will continue to tail off, which means 
the Programme needs to be kept under constant review to respond to any 
material change in circumstances. 

 
7.3. For the longer term, financing any form of capital programme will almost 

certainly be heavily reliant on borrowing, although external financing and 
Section 106 receipts, through either Section 106 or the new Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) are expected to remain available, if unpredictable.  
This therefore potentially brings an additional revenue pressure. 

 
7.4. For the immediate short term, borrowing will only be used as a last resort.  

The exception to this will be where a specific business case can be made to 
finance investment through borrowing, for example where savings or 
additional income can be generated.  Longer term, the Council will be faced 
with an increasing dependence on borrowing, with the consequent revenue 
impact this has.  Existing forms of external funding, such as TfL grants, are 
expected to continue, although their longer term existence is uncertain. 

 
7.5. Given the ongoing need for austerity in the public sector, and the very real 

threat of future reductions in funding, it is not felt prudent to consider any 
expansion to the existing capital programme.  The programme now proposed 
therefore covers a single year, 2014/15, for non-schools assets, but a two year 
programme, to reflect the need to expand school places in time for the 
commencement of the academic year in September 2015, and to reflect the 
recent grant announcement; the details of which are covered below. 

 
7.6. A review of the longer term position is being undertaken in the context of the 

expected level of receipts still to be generated.  Given the need to develop a 
longer term budget strategy, reflected in the Council’s revenue budget 
strategy, it is proposed to bring a further report to Cabinet in due course, for 
adoption by the incoming Administration.  This will set out the initial 
programme planned for the next 4 years, commencing in 2015/16.  This will be 
developed in parallel with the revenue budget, so any revenue consequences 
that may arise are fully take into account. 

 
Proposed Forward Programme 
 
7.7. The Programme – and in particular that part of the Programme funded by the 

Council’s own resources – has therefore been constructed with these factors 
in mind.  A detailed Programme funded through Council resources has been 
compiled for 2014/15, and approval to this Programme will formally be sought 
from Cabinet in February.  An outline Programme for elements funded through 
external resources has also been drawn together, for consideration by Cabinet 
but also to give some context to the Council’s own funding.  These 
programmes are summarised in Appendix E. 
 

Page 40



$damted1z.doc 

7.8. There is one proposed amendment to the current 2013/14 programme.  This is 
to enable the Council to jointly acquire the freehold interest in the former 
Ardleigh Green Baptist Church as ‘Tenants in Common’ in conjunction with the 
Trustees of the Ardleigh Green Family Centre.  The Council’s contribution 
would be for £250,000.  The property is used for educational and community 
purposes and over the first 5 years of operation has grown into invaluable 
facility catering for a wide cross section of uses including, Health Drop in, 
pregnancy advice/support, Community Policing, After School Provision, Adult 
education and Activities for elderly in the community.  Funding is available 
from overall capital receipts. 
 

7.9. The programme also includes the expansion of schools.  A report was 
submitted to Cabinet on 20th November 2013 identifying a shortfall of 11 
Forms of Entry (FE) for September 2015/16 and outlining proposals to 
address Primary Rising Rolls, with Phase 2 of an expansion programme being 
developed on a three-stranded approach to: 

 
• Encourage potential new Free Schools into Havering coupled with 

consideration of new “all-through” provision potentially on existing 
secondary school sites;  

• Expand current primary phase schools by using additional sites adjacent to 
existing school sites;  

• Expand existing primary phase schools on their existing school sites. 
 
7.10. Without detailed proposals it is difficult to estimate the costs of additional 

classrooms as the needs at each site will be different.  However, previously 
officers have estimated costs at £250,000 per classroom (or £1,750,000 per 
Form of Entry). 
 

7.11. Should the Council need to fund the provision of all required 11 FE (77 
classrooms) then costs would be in the region of £19.25m.  Clearly this could 
increase due to the requirements of individual sites but it is hoped that the 
pursuit of the 3 stranded approach to delivery will result in some free school 
provision (funded by the Education Funding Agency – EFA). 
 

7.12. It is likely that some of the 2013/14 Capital Programme will be available 
towards the 2015/16 permanent expansion and in addition the Council have 
been awarded grants of £14.6m and £15.4m for 2015/16 and 2016/17 
respectively; these details have recently been announced.  Although the 
grants are for later years, in order to deliver the building works for September 
2015 it will be necessary to add at least the 2015/16 grant to the 2014/15 
Capital Programme.  The Council will manage the cash flow implications of 
this, any loss of interest is expected to be minimal at this stage.  It should be 
noted that the 2016/17 grant may be needed toward Phase 3 of the expansion 
programme.  A detailed plan for phase 2 is currently being developed and if 
possible will be included in the February Cabinet report. 

 
7.13. Alongside the Council funded element of the Programme, the Appendix also 

summarises the remainder of the Capital Programme, which includes spend 
which is financed through grant funding.  It excludes the HRA Capital 

Page 41



$damted1z.doc 

Programme as this is covered separately in the HRA budget report.  It does 
however include the recently announced TfL funding streams for 2014/15, 
together with information on the allocation of grants for schools’ works, the 
details of which were notified to the Council in parallel with the main 
settlement announcements. 
 

7.14. At this point in time, further information on grant funding is awaited, or 
consideration is still being given to the potential deployment of grant funding.  
Pending further formal announcements by Government departments, further 
information on these will be included in the February report.  This will appear 
alongside an overall summary of the whole Capital Programme. 

 
7.15. The overall Programme is broadly balanced, although still heavily reliant on 

the generation of capital receipts at the appropriate level.  This is therefore an 
area of risk as stated above, and is kept under review as disposals progress.  

 
7.16. At this stage, no assumptions have been made regarding prudential borrowing 

to fund the Programme.  Consideration has been given as part of previous 
budget-setting cycles to the inclusion of revenue provision to support capital 
spend, but judicious management of the Programme and the associated 
disposal programme has meant that the Council has been able to avoid the 
need to do so.  Whilst the situation is being kept under review, however, it is 
likely that an alternative to the reliance on capital receipts to finance the 
Council’s capital spend will be needed. 

 
8. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
8.1. Based on the factors that are set out in this report, the Council is in a good 

position to take advantage of the additional Council Tax freeze grant offered 
by the Government for 2014/15, although this is not without some degree of 
risk.  Assuming that there are no changes in the final settlement, and no other 
material factors come to light, the budget recommendations to Cabinet and 
Council in February will reflect this position.  This is based on the factors set 
out above. 
 

8.2. As indicated elsewhere within this report, the Council has maintained a 
Contingency Fund and also has sums held in reserves and balances that 
could be deployed to address specific in-year issues, should the risks 
highlighted in this report materialise.  These risks will be carefully monitored in 
parallel with the consultation process, but these funds would provide a cushion 
for the immediate future should the need arise.  The final budget proposals will 
be drawn up in the light of responses to the consultation process, the 
developing position around the settlement, and the assessment of the risks 
facing the Council. 
 

8.3. The assumption made at this stage is that the Council will seek to take 
advantage of the Council Tax freeze grant on offer for 2014/15; the final 
budget proposals presented to Cabinet are being developed with that 
objective in mind. 

 

Page 42



$damted1z.doc 

8.4. It is, however, recognised that this does bring a degree of risk; taking the grant 
does mean foregoing an increase in base Council Tax income which can only 
be recovered by compensating rises in subsequent years.  The alternative 
would be to seek an additional level of savings at the appropriate time.  Given 
the current financial climate, with the prospects for national growth shrinking, 
and with the Government extending its planned austerity period, holding 
Council Tax at the current level for a further year is felt to be the approach 
favoured by our residents.  The Administration remains committed to 
maintaining the stability of the Council's finances and doing everything it can 
to keep Council Tax rises to a minimum, and wherever possible holding 
Council Tax to current levels. 
 

8.5. As previously reported to Cabinet, and as set out elsewhere in this report, 
further reductions in Government funding are inevitable, and likely to be of a 
similar scale to those experienced over the last 4 years.  Given the overall 
budget gap currently forecast, it is not felt prudent to consider any reduction in 
the level of Council Tax, not the least because the level of rises may well be 
subject to an even more rigid cap.  There is an incremental loss of funding 
from holding Council Tax at the same level, which the freeze grant only 
partially compensates for, and this would be exacerbated by a reduction. 

 
8.6. Adopting this approach would see Havering’s Council Tax held at the same 

level for a fourth successive year, following a reduction in 2010/11.  Owing to 
the prudent approach adopted and the focus on reducing back-office 
bureaucracy in order to protect frontline services, the Council is able to 
recognise the priorities indicated by our residents.  This means that: 

 
• The Council can maintain weekly waste collections 
• No libraries have been closed or had their opening hours reduced 
• The Council will continue to invest in roads and pavement repairs 
• Social care support for vulnerable residents can be maintained 
• The Council can continue to prioritise clean streets and a pleasant 

environment for all. 
 
8.7. Work on the future financial strategy is continuing and detailed proposals will 

be drawn up over coming months.  It is proposed to commence discussions 
with the Administration immediately after the May elections, with the aim of 
bring firm recommendations to Cabinet during the Summer.  The scale of the 
future budget gap over the four year period commencing in 2015/16 is even 
larger than the current gap.  It is therefore essential that plans are agreed 
sufficiently early to enable a further round of savings to be initiated and 
delivered from that financial year onwards. 
 

9. HOUSING BUDGET 
 
9.1. The HRA budget, together with the proposed housing rent levels, and the HRA 

capital programme, will be presented to Cabinet in February. 
 
10. CONSULTATION 
 

Page 43



$damted1z.doc 

10.1. The proposals set out in this report will be publicised through the local media, 
on the Council’s website and through other communication channels - and 
responses from residents will be encouraged.  A further joint meeting of all 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees is being held on 23rd January to invite 
comments on the proposals now being released for consultation. 

 
10.2. We will also write to the local Chamber of Commerce and Federation of Small 

Businesses to alert them to the budget report and ask for any feedback from 
the local business community 
 

10.3. Beyond this statutory consultation, the Council is engaged in an ongoing effort 
to listen and respond to the views of residents.  Three years ago, the Council 
undertook the highly successful Your Council, Your Say survey. Over 12,000 
residents responded to the survey – making it one of the most productive 
public surveys in recent history.  As part of Havering’s commitment to better 
understand the priorities of local residents for the Borough – particularly at a 
time of reducing budgets - the Your Council, Your Say survey was repeated in 
March this year. 

 
11. GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY (GLA) 
 
11.1. The announcement of the Mayor’s draft budget proposals were made on 20th 

December.  This indicated an intention to make a slight reduction in the GLA’s 
Council Tax level, from the current £303 to £299 – a reduction of £4, or around 
1.3%.  Consultation on the budget proposals ends on Wednesday 15th 
January.  The final draft budget proposals will be considered by the London 
Assembly  on 14th February and the budget is due to be approved by the end 
of February, although there does not appear to be a specific date as yet. 
 

11.2. The Mayor’s draft budget consists of – Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, 
Transport for London, London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority, the 
London Legacy Development Corporation and core Greater London Authority. 
The total budget (capital and revenue) is £17.3 billion. 
 

11.3. The Mayor’s 2014/15 draft net revenue spend is £5,206 million.  Under the 
proposal the total GLA precept will be cut from £303 a year to £299 (for a 
Band D household).  The Mayor’s proposed council tax precept draft budget 
comprises of £218.88 to support the Mayor’s Office for Policing & Crime 
(principally the Metropolitan Police), £49.76 for the London Fire Brigade, £20 
for the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and £10.36 for transport and 
other services. 

 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 
 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
This enables the Council to develop its budget as set out in the constitution. 
 

Page 44



$damted1z.doc 

Other options considered: 
 
None.  The Constitution requires this as a step towards setting its budget. 
 
 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 
The Council’s budget-setting process will ensure that financial implications and risks 
are fully met.  Any financial implications or risks are covered in this report as 
necessary.  There are significant risks given the continuing degree of uncertainty 
over the outcome of the LGFS, the extensive changes to the funding system and the 
complexities associated with it, and the general economic environment, but the steps 
already taken by the Council should mitigate much of this.  However, the degree of 
risk has risen and the Council needs to ensure it is taking a robust approach in its 
budget-setting process, both now and for the future.  It will also be necessary to 
continually refine the financial forecasts underpinning the Council’s budget to ensure 
that any necessary actions can be taken at the appropriate times, allowing for 
consultation as appropriate. 
 
Legal implications and risks: 
 
There are no direct legal implications or risks from this report.  The corporate 
business planning process will need to take account of new and existing statutory 
duties and responsibilities that are imposed on the Council by central government 
even if there are inadequate or no commensurate increases in government funding 
to finance them.  Failure to do so will put the Council at risk of legal challenge by 
affected residents or businesses. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 
There are no direct HR implications arising from this report, however, if proposals 
that require staffing reductions are to be considered, as a result of the budget 
position, these will be managed in accordance with Council policy and procedure 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 
Detailed equalities implications will be assessed as part of the corporate and service 
planning process.  Equalities impact assessments are systematically carried out for 
any services, projects or other schemes that have the potential to impact on 
particular equality characteristics for either customers or staff, in line with the 
Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



$damted1z.doc 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 
Equalities Impact Assessments for savings proposals. 
Revenue Monitoring Report Period 6 2013/14 
Capital Monitoring Report Period 6 2013/14 
 
 

Page 46



$damted1z.doc 

APPENDICES 
 
 
 
A AUTUMN BUDGET STATEMENT 
 
B LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL SETTLEMENT 
 
C SCHEDULE OF GRANTS 
 
D SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BUDGET ITEMS 2014/15 
 
E CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 
F CORPORATE PLAN – “PLAN ON A PAGE” 
 
G RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON FINANCIAL SETTLEMENT  
  
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX A 
 

AUTUMN BUDGET STATEMENT 

 
Headlines 

• Forecast growth for 2013 rises to 1.4% from 0.6% 
• 2% capping of business rates and adjustments to reliefs 
• £3bn of extra departmental cuts with Local government being protected 
• Removal of employers National insurance Contributions for under-21s. 
• Free school meals for reception, Year 1 and Year 2 pupils 
• £70m of New Homes Bonus generated from London authorities will be 
pooled within the GLA’s Local Enterprise Partnership.  

• The retirement age to claim the state pension will increase earlier than 
planned 

 
Detail 
 
The Chancellor of the Exchequer presented his Autumn Statement to the House of 
Commons on 5th December 2013. This briefing is to highlight the key 
announcements from the Autumn Statement as well as how this affects Local 
Government. 
 
The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) has increased its forecasts for GDP 
growth this year and next. Britain’s economy is now expected to grow by 1.4% for 
this year, an increase of 0.8% predicted in the 2013 Budget. Table 1 shows the 
revisions to the growth forecast as stated in the Autumn Statement. 
 
Table 1 – GDP growth forecasts for the UK 
 

Announcement 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Autumn Statement 
2013 

0.9% 0.2% 1.4% 2.4% 2.2% 2.6% 2.7% 
 

Budget 2013 0.9% 0.2% 0.6% 1.8% 2.3% 2.7% 2.8% 
 

Emergency Budget 
2010 

2.3% 2.8% 2.9% 2.7% 2.7% - - 

 
In addition to the increase in growth, the chancellor based on the OBR’s forecasts 
predicts the budget to run into a small surplus in 2018/19 however a large majority of 
the cuts required to reduce the deficit has of yet, not fed through into departmental 
spend. Table 2 below shows the changes in Public Sector Net Borrowing forecast 
since the last Autumn Statement and the delay in balancing public sector debt. 
 
Table 2 – Public Sector Net Borrowing forecast for the UK 
 
Announcement 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Autumn 
Statement 2013 

£112bn £96bn £79bn £51bn £23bn (£2.2bn) 

CSR 2013 £120bn £108bn £96bn £67bn £43bn 
No 

Forecast 

Page 49



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Autumn 
Statement 2012 

£112bn £99bn £81bn £56bn 
No 

Forecast 
No 

Forecast 
Emergency 
Budget 

£60bn £37bn £20bn 
No 

Forecast 
No 

Forecast 
No 

Forecast 
 
Business Rates 
 
Numerous announcements were made in regards to reducing the tax burden to 
businesses. Most notably, the Chancellor has capped the increase in business rates 
to 2% for 2014/15 only. In addition, further announcements on discounts to 
businesses have been announced. 
 

• Business rates: discount – The government will introduce a business rates 
discount of £1,000 for retail and food and drink premises with a rateable value 
below £50,000 for 2 years up to the state aid limits from 1 April 2014.  

• Business rates: reoccupation relief – The government will introduce a 50% 
business rates relief for 18 months up to the state aid limits for businesses that 
move into retail premises that have been empty for a year or more. 
Businesses which move into empty premises between 1 April 2014 and 31 
March 2016 will be eligible for the relief.  

• Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR) – The government will extend the 
doubling of SBRR for a further year from 1 April 2014. 

• Small Business Rate Relief on second properties – The government will 
relax the SBRR rules to allow businesses in receipt of SBRR taking on an 
additional property to retain SBRR on the first property for 1 year, with effect 
from 1 April 2014.  

• Business rates: payment – The government will allow businesses to pay 
business rates over 12 months rather than 10 months, with effect from 1 April 
2014. 

• Business rates: appeals – The government will consult on reforms to the 
business rates appeals process and will commit to clear 95% of the 
September 2013 backlog of appeals before July 2015. 

• Business rates administration: longer-term reform – The government will 
publish a discussion paper in Spring 2014 setting out the advantages and 
disadvantages of different options for longer-term reforms to business rates 
administration which maintain the aggregate tax yield. 

 
A statement has been issued subsequently, stating that local authorities will be fully 
refunded for the loss in revenue resulting from these changes. Exactly how this will 
be achieved remains to be announced, although the most likely option is via a 
Section 31 grant. 
 
Autumn Statement 2013 announces a reduction in unprotected Resource 
Departmental Expenditure Limit (RDEL) budgets of £1.1 billion in 2014-15 and £1 
billion in 2015-16. This represents a reduction of 1.1%. Health, schools and Official 
Development Assistance (ODA) budgets will continue to be protected in line with the 
policy set out at the 2013 Spending Review. Local government is also excluded from 
this reduction, to help local authorities to freeze council tax in 2014-15 and 2015-16. 
 
The government will make funding available to offer every pupil attending a state-
funded school in reception, year 1 and year 2 a free school lunch from September 
2014. Pupil Premium rates and eligibility will be unaffected.  

Page 50



$ytgo04o5.doc 

 
The government has announced that £70m of New Homes Bonus will be pooled 
within the London Local Enterprise Partnership. The New Homes Bonus will not be 
pooled to LEP’s outside of London. This represents a change from the policy set out 
in the 2013 spending Review, which proposed that £400m of business rates should 
be pooled with LEP’s across England. In addition, the government will carry out an 
evaluation of New Homes Bonus by Easter 2014 and consult on measures to 
improve the incentives. 
 
The government announced that it would increase the funding available for new 
affordable housing, by increasing local authority Housing Revenue Account 
borrowing limits by £150m in 2015/16 and 2016/17. This will be allocated on a 
competitive basis and from the sale of vacant high value social housing. 
 
Other Announcements 

• The state pension age is to increase to 68 in the mid-2030s and to 69 in the 
late 2040s. In April 2014, the state pension will rise by £2.95 a week. 

• Overall welfare spending is to be capped.  

• Petrol taxes stay frozen – a planned rise of 2p per litre for next year is to be 
scrapped. 

• HM Treasury will continue to look at how public sector pay policy can be 
reformed. In advance of this, the government will pilot a “pay bill control” in a 
small number of government organisations. This will look to replace the 1% 
pay cap with a pre-determined budget for pay. 

• The government will allow local authorities to sell assets and to use up to 
£200m of receipts to fund one-off costs of reforming services. This 
announcement follows the proposal in 2013 Spending Review.  

• All pupils at state schools in England in Reception, Year 1 and Year 2 are to 
get free school lunches from next September, at an estimated cost of £600m a 
year  

• Government propose to consult on a new 10-unit threshold for section 106 
affordable housing contributions. 

• Autumn Statement 2013 announces a national Council Tax discount of 50% 
for annexes from April 2014. 
 

Effect on Local Government 

The Chancellor announced further reductions in public sector expenditure for 
2014/15 and 2015/16 for unprotected departments.  As stated, Local Government 
have been excluded as to aid local government in freezing council tax however other 
department such as the Department for Work and Pensions face further reductions. 
Havering currently receives a number of grants from these departments and it is 
highly likely that these reductions will be passed down to local authorities. 

A number of changes to business rates were announced by the chancellor. At 
present there is no clear statement on whether this is to be funded in full from the 
treasury or by the current shares used in allocating business rate yield. In addition, 

Page 51



$ytgo04o5.doc 

these new policies on relief create a more complicated / centrally controlled system 
of taxation due to the various mandatory reliefs in place and the various forms of 
compensation from central government. 

During the Summer 2013, Government announced a consultation in regards to 
removing £400m from the New Homes Bonus and transferring this to Local 
Enterprise Partnerships. As announced in the Autumn Statement, only the London 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) contribution will remain, costing London 
authorities £70m. This approximately results in a loss of £1.3m to Havering’s NHB 
allocation.  

Page 52



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX B 
 

PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT 

2014/15 & 2015/16 

 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1. On 18th December 2013, Parliamentary under Secretary of State at the 

Department for Communities and Local Government, Brandon Lewis MP, 
made a written statement to Parliament concerning the provisional local 
government finance settlements 2014/15 and 2015/16. This briefing note 
highlights key issues of note and some comparative information. 
 

1.2. The provisional settlement provides local authorities with their provisional 
funding allocations for the next two years (2014/15 and 2015/16) only.  

 
2. Headlines  

 
2.1. The Secretary of State announced that councils will face an average 

reduction in spending power of 2.9% and that no authority would experience a 
decrease of more than 6.9%. In a similar manner to the previous years, the 
government’s headlines focus on comparative figures concerning a local 
authority’s “revenue spending power” 
 

2.2. From the introduction of localisation of business rates in 2013, the formula 
grant methodology is now fixed until the next reset in 2020/21. The various 
indicators and data sets are fixed based on the 2013/14 formula grant 
calculation which includes data from the 2001 census. 

 
2.3. As originally announced in the 2013 Autumn Statement, local government 

was exempt from any further cuts as local authorities have already seen 
reductions from the previous Autumn Statement and Spending Round 
(SR2013) which results in a further reduction of £15m to Havering’s Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) by 2015/16. 
 

3. National Control Total and Spending powers 
 
3.1. The average spending power reduction nationally has been stated as 2.9% 

with Havering’s comparable reduction in 2014/15 as 0.85% and an increase 
in 2015/16 of 1.2%. Although 2014/15 shows relatively low reductions in 
funding level whilst 2015/16 shows an actual increase. The figures presented 
are not a true reflect of the cuts facing local government as they do not 
compare like for like. For example, the figures include a number of estimates, 
shared funding and additional burdens being placed on local authorities. For 
example the figures include: 

• Estimates in regards to the New Homes Bonus  
• No account of the top-slice in New Homes Bonus 
• £15m grant of “pooled funding from NHS” and 
• Additional burdens in relation to Adult Social Care.  

 

Page 53



$ytgo04o5.doc 

3.2. Table 1 below shows the reduction in formula funding from 2013/14 to 
2015/16 following the reductions announced at the 2012 Autumn Statement 
and the 2013 Spending Round. The amount of funding available for local 
authorities has reduced by £2.5bn in 2014/15 and by a further £3.1bn in 
2015/16.  
 

Table 1- Spending Control Total for 2013-14 to 2015-16 
 

 2013/14 
£000’s 

2014/15 
£000’s 

2015/16 
£000’s 

Departmental 
Control Totals 

26,283 23,808 20,675 

Reduction in 
Funding 

 (2,475) (3,133) 

Percentage 
Reduction 

 (9.4%) (13.1%) 

 
4. The Formula Funding – Havering 

 
4.1. The provisional funding allocation is used to determine both Havering’s 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Business Rate Baseline (BRB). This 
comprises of the current four-block formula grant model which has been 
frozen since last year’s settlement and incorporates £31.2m of rolled in 
grants. This equates to a provisional Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA) 
for 2014/15 of £69.658m (£60.753m for 2015/16) compared to a 2013/14 
equivalent of £75.569m. As business rates is uprated in line with inflation or 
for 2014/15 by the 2% cap announced in the Autumn statement, all of the 
funding adjustments only effect Havering’s RSG.  
 

4.2. The methodology used in allocating the reductions in departmental spending 
has also changed. The £31.2m of rolled in grant have been accounted for 
separately with various level of reductions being applied to each grant. 
Appendix 1 shows the reduction in funding and notably the significant 
decrease to Havering’s RSG allocation. 
 

4.3. In order to compare like for like, Appendix 1 shows a comparison of 
Havering’s settlement funding allocation since 2013/14. When compared to 
the 2013/14 grant allocation, Havering’s RSG will have reduced by £15m by 
2015/16. As part of the 2014/15 calculation, the Council Tax Support (CTS) 
grant which was introduced in 2013/14 has now been completely rolled up 
into the formula grant and has been scaled using the same methodology as 
the core grant. 
 

4.4. The reduction in core RSG grant is predominantly due to the reductions 
placed on local authorities through the Autumn Statement in 2012 and the 
Spending Round in 2013.  Due to the formula being locked in and the 2% 
increase in business rates, each authority’s core RSG allocation is being 
scaled by 33%.  
 

4.5. The amount of New Homes bonus removed from the formula grant has also 
been adjusted. Previously it was announced that £200m would be removed 
from the departmental control totals. Following the release of the provisional 
allocations in November, the total amount required is less than the amount to 

Page 54



$ytgo04o5.doc 

be removed from the control totals. As a result, £100m was not needed 
therefore returned to the control totals mitigating the reduction in grant 
allocation in both 2014/15 and 2015/16. 
 

4.6. Table 2 shows the list of grants which forms part of Havering’s Settlement 
Funding Assessment. The most notable reduction is the decrease of Early 
Intervention funding by approximately 7.7% in 2014/15 and by a further 8.5% 
in 2015/16.  
 

4.7. In addition, the 2013/14 council tax freeze grant has also been rolled into the 
settlement funding assessment and now potentially faces reductions. The 
2011/12 grant allocation which is already part of the settlement funding 
allocation is beginning to be reduced slightly even without being fully 
integrated into the formula. This also excludes the 2012/13 allocation which 
has been removed completely. 
 
Table 2. Analysis of grants incorporated into the Settlement Funding 
Assessment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.8. The formula grant system has consistently penalised Havering since its 
inception. Compared to other authorities in London, Havering receives one of 
the lowest grant-per-head allocations despite being one of the largest 
boroughs in London with the highest proportion of elderly population. The 
indicators and data sets do not reflect the demographics pressures affecting 
the authority which has resulted in Havering having to increase its council tax 
to compensate. Appendix 2 shows the grant per head allocations for London, 
clearly showing the amount of funding Havering receives compared to other 
London authorities. 
 

5. Business Rate Baseline – Havering 
 
5.1 As announced in the Autumn Statement, business rates will be capped at 2% 
next year. As of yet, no decision has been made in relation to how the 
extension to the small business rate reliefs will be funded. Table 3 below 
shows how the 2% cap affects Havering’s Business Rate Baseline and Top-up 
 
Table 3 – Effects of the 2% cap in 2014/15 and estimated increase in 
Business Rate in 2015/16. 
 

 Settlement 
2013/14 
£000’s 

Settlement 
2014/15* 
£000’s 

Settlement 
2015/16** 
£000’s 

Business Rate Baseline 30,189 30,777  31,627  

 Settlement 
2013/14 
£000’s 

Settlement 
2014/15 
£000’s 

Settlement 
2015/16 
000’s 

Council Tax Freeze Funding 11/12 2,680  2,668  2,667  
Council Tax Freeze Funding 13/14   1,098  1,098  
Early Intervention Funding 6,646 6,131             5,607  
Homelessness Prevention 400                 394                394  
Lead Local Flood Authorities Funding 132                  130                 130  
Learning Development & Public Reform  7,822               7,896              7,893  
Returned Capitalisation                       81    
Total 17,680 18,398 17,789 

Page 55



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Top-Up 9,033  9,208 9,462 
Target Business Rates 21,156 21,569          22,165   
    

Safety Net 27,925 28,468 29,254 
Note : 
* 2014/15 - 2% cut 
** 2015/16 -  estimated at 2.7% 
 

 
6.  Pooling 

 
6.1  In October 2013, Havering applied to enter into a pooling arrangement with 
Thurrock Borough Council, Basildon Borough Council and Barking & 
Dagenham. As part of the settlement announcement, this has been formally 
approved. As a result, Havering will be able to share in the growth generated 
by the pool as a whole.  
 

6.2  Table 4 below shows the make-up of the authorities within the pool. As part of 
the process, the pool will be a tariff authority paying a 4% levy to central 
government. Thurrock will lead of the administration of the pool and will make 
the necessary transaction with DCLG. 

 
Table 4 - 2014-15 Key Information for pools. 
 

Local authorities within 
pool 

Thurrock Basildon Havering 
Barking 
and 

Dagenham 

Total for 
pool 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Baseline funding level  29,574 5,077 30,777 51,386 116,815 
Tariffs and Top-Ups (23,224) (25,467) 9,208 34,346 (5,137) 
Levy Rate 0.44 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.04 
Safety Net Threshold 27,356 4,696 28,468 47,532 108,054 

 
7. Timeline for Response 

 
7.1 The Government is consulting on the draft settlement figures and written 
representative must be sent by the 15th January 2014. 

 

Page 56



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX 1 
 

PROVISIONAL GRANT SETTLEMENT 2013/14 & 2014/15 
TRANSFERS 

     

   Settlement 
2013/14 
£000 

Settlement 
2014/15 
£000 

Settlement 
2015/16 
£000 

       

Bal B/f  53,296  57,888  51,260  

       

Transferred into formula     

Council Tax Support Funding 13,548     

LACSEG  (4,978)    

Floor  (3,978)    

Scaling    (6,628) (8,296) 

         

  57,888  51,260  42,964  

      
Included as part of the Settlement Funding 
Allocation 

    

Council Tax Freeze Funding 11/12 2,680  2,668  2,667  

Council Tax Freeze Funding 13/14   1,098  1,098  

Early Intervention Funding 6,646  6,131  5,607  

Homelessness Prevention 400  394  394  

Lead Local Flood Authorities Funding 132  130  130  

Learning Development and Public Reform 7,822  7,896  7,893  

Returned Capitalisation   81    

         
Total Transfers 17,680  18,398  17,789  

         

Provisional Grant  75,568  69,658  60,753  

      

Of which relates to business rates 30,189  30,777  31,627  

Payment via Revenue Support Grant 45,378  38,881  29,126  
         

 

Page 57



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX 2 
 

2014/15 SETTLEMENT FUNDING PER HEAD OF POPULATION 
 

Authority 

Grant Per 
Head 
£s 

City of London 4,364.91  

Barking and Dagenham 611.48  

Barnet 329.80  

Bexley 315.63  

Brent 559.11  

Bromley 246.57  

Camden 812.40  

Croydon 402.97  

Ealing 450.42  

Enfield 468.91  

Greenwich 645.29  

Hackney 881.38  

Hammersmith and Fulham 663.73  

Haringey 632.34  

Harrow 326.13  

Havering 293.63  

Hillingdon 343.37  

Hounslow 385.40  

Islington 812.38  

Kensington and Chelsea 650.77  

Kingston Upon Thames 271.89  

Lambeth 723.15  

Lewisham 675.73  

Merton 359.33  

Newham 709.56  

Redbridge 378.66  

Richmond Upon Thames 245.38  

Southwark 788.96  

Sutton 389.86  

Tower Hamlets 856.22  

Waltham Forest 536.47  

Wandsworth 469.90  

Westminster 805.64  

 
 

 

Page 58



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX C 
 

SPECIFIC GRANTS (AS NOTIFIED 24 DECEMBER 2013) 
 

Directorate Service 
Funding 
Body Grant name 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2013/14                
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2014/15       
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2013/14     
£000'S 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2014/15    
£000'S 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S RATES 
2013/14 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S  RATES  
2014/15 

CHILDRE'N ADULTS AND HOUSING ADULTS  DOH 
NHS for Social Care Grant (Better Care 
Fund from 2015/16 0.00 0.00 3,599.51 4,609.38 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING ADULTS  DOH New Burdens for Adult Social Care 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,194.25 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING ADULTS  DOH Local Reform and Community Voices 0.00 0.00 176.14 181.64 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING ADULTS  DOH 
Guaranteed Income Payments for 
Veterans Grant 2012/13 0.00 0.00 1.48 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING ADULTS  DOH 
Learning Disability and Health Reform 
Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,821.66 

        
7,896.00  

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES DFE Social Work Improvement Team 158.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES DCLG Troubled Families 0.00 0.00 530.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES DFE 

Early Intervention Grant 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,646.10 

   
6,131.00  

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES YJB 

Youth Offending Team 
299.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES DFE 

Adoption Improvement Grant 
104.75 0.00 390.89 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES YJB Children on Remand - New 0.00 0.00 74.23 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
CHILDRENS 
SERVICES DFE SEN Funding 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00     

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
BUSINESS AND 
PERFORMANCE DOH Zero based Review of Adult Social Care 0.00 0.00 59.06 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
HOMES AND 
HOUSING DCLG Homelessness Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 

        
394.00  

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DFE Dedicated Schools Grant 124,971.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

P
age 59



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Directorate Service 
Funding 
Body Grant name 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2013/14                
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2014/15       
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2013/14     
£000'S 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2014/15    
£000'S 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S RATES 
2013/14 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S  RATES  
2014/15 

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DFE 

Dedicated Schools Grant -New alloc for 
2 year olds from 13/14 0.00 0.00 2,119.82 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DFE Education Services Grant 0.00 0.00 3,510.60 3,326.22 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT YPLA YPLA Teachers Pay Grant 57.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT YPLA YPLA  Pupil Premium Grant 5,051.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT YPLA 

LSC Havering College of Adult 
Education  181.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT YPLA 

LSC Havering Adult Education Central 
Office(FLIF/TTG funding) 1,086.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DCLG Extended Rights to Free Travel 0.00 0.00 37.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DFE HIAS Development Projects 36.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CHILDREN ADULTS AND HOUSING 
LEARNING AND 
ACHIEVEMENT DFE Schools 426.69 0.00         

        132,375.42 0.00 10,573.73 9,311.48 14,867.76  
       

14,421.00  

                    

                    
CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CULTURE AND 
LEISURE 

ARTS 
COUNCIL Havering Music School 276.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CUSTOMER 
SERVICES   Births Deaths and Marriages 7.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT   Environmental Stewardship 25.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

POLICY AND 
COMMUNITY 
MANAGER MOPAC 

Mayors Funding for DIP and Community 
Safety 0.00 0.00 213.40 0.00     

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

REGENERATION 
POLICY AND DCLG Community Rights to Bid 0.00 0.00 7.86 7.86 0.00   

P
age 60



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Directorate Service 
Funding 
Body Grant name 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2013/14                
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2014/15       
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2013/14     
£000'S 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2014/15    
£000'S 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S RATES 
2013/14 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S  RATES  
2014/15 

PLANNING 

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

REGENERATION 
POLICY AND 
PLANNING DCLG 

Community Rights to challenge new 
burdens - New 0.00 0.00 8.57 8.57 0.00   

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

REGENERATION 
POLICY AND 
PLANNING DCLG Flood Funding 0.00 0.00 77.53 77.53 132.00 

        
130.00  

CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STREETCARE DCLG Waste Collection - Green Rewards  0.00 0.00 462.76 399.46 0.00   
CULTURE COMMUNITY & 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STREETCARE DCLG Waste Collection Campaign 0.00 0.00 127.04 126.50 0.00   

        308.80 0.00 897.16 619.92 132.00  
       

130.00  

                    

                    

PUBLIC HEALTH PUBLIC HEALTH DOH 
Healthy Lives for Healthy People - Public 
Health Funding 8,833 9,717 0.00 0.00 0.00   

        8,833.40 9,716.74 0.00 0.00 0 
       
-   

                    

                    

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DCLG 

Localisation Support for CT.Transitional 
Grant Scheme 0.00 0.00 366.81 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Rent Allowances 44,444.54 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Disc Hsg Pay and App Imple 582.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Rent Rebates 31,192.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP CT Support and HB Admin Grant 1,380.49 1,290.48 17.15 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Housing Benefit Transitional Grant 0.00 0.00 91.06 0.00 0.00   

  
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Housing Benefit Welfare Reform Grant 0.00 0.00 20.76 0.00 0.00   

P
age 61



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Directorate Service 
Funding 
Body Grant name 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2013/14                
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2014/15       
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2013/14     
£000'S 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2014/15    
£000'S 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S RATES 
2013/14 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S  RATES  
2014/15 

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DWP Recession Funding 68.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DCLG Implementation of new CT Scheme 0.00 0.00 123.06 119.93 0.00   

RESOURCES 

LEGAL AND 
DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES DCLG Electoral Registration 0.00 0.00 9.99 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Council Tax Freeze Grant Year  1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,680.19 
        

2,669.00  

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Council Tax Freeze Grant Year 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Council Tax Freeze Grant Year 3 0.00 0.00 1,083.19 0.00 0.00 
        

1,098.00  

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Council Tax Freeze Grant Year 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,103.73 0.00   

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Council Tax Freeze Grant Year 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES EXTERNAL FINANCE DCLG Unallocated Grant: New Homes Bonus 0.00 0.00 2,053.24 3,520.49 0.00   

RESOURCES 
FINANCE AND 
PROCUREMENT DCLG Social Housing Fraud 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
HUMAN 
RESOURCES DOH Supported Employment 2.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DOH Localisation of Social Fund - Admin 0.00 0.00 731.85 721.20 0.00   

        77,672.02 1,290.48 4,597.09 5,565.35 2680.19 
       

3,767.00  

      Returned Capitalisation Funding             

      TOTAL EXCLUDING NHB AND RSG 219,189.64 11,007.22 16,067.98 15,496.75 17,679.95 
       

18,318.00  

                    

RESOURCES 
EXCHEQUER 
SERVICES DCLG Council Tax Benefit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,549.03 

        
-   

                    

RESOURCES RSG DCLG Revenue Support Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,626.12 
        

27,684.00  

                    

P
age 62



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Directorate Service 
Funding 
Body Grant name 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2013/14                
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
RINGFEN
CED 

2014/15       
£000's 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2013/14     
£000'S 

SPECIFIC 
UNRINGF
ENCED 
GRANT 
2014/15    
£000'S 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S RATES 
2013/14 

TOTAL 
RSG AND 
BUSINES
S  RATES  
2014/15 

RESOURCES COLLECTION FUND DCLG Business Rates 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,714.15 
        

23,576.00  

                    

RESOURCES 

RETURNED 
CAPITALISATION 
FUNDING DCLG Returned Capitalisation Funding 14/15             

                    

      TOTAL INCLUDING NHB AND RSG 219,189.64 11,007.22 16,067.98 15,496.75 75,569.25 
       

69,578.00  

 
 
 

P
age 63



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX D 
 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BUDGET ITEMS 
 

 

Detail Description Head of Service 
Lead 

2014/15  

       £000's 

 CULTURE, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT    

 

Streetcare Parking income is not expected to reach the levels assumed in the 
budget and therefore this has to be assumed to be an ongoing budget 
pressure. 

Bob Wenman 200 

 

Corporate & 
Customer 
Transformation 

The Council has made a major investment in new technology to 
improve customer service and provide access to many services 24/7.  
The new portal, implemented in partnership with Waltham Forest, is 
now live albeit later than planned due to technical difficulties.  This will 
greatly increase the level of automated customer transactions which will 
lead to further savings once embedded. 

Caroline Woolf 200 

 

Regulatory Income from building control functions has reduced significantly over 
the last year or so, driven in particular by general economic conditions 
and the state of the housing market. This seems unlikely to be reversed 
and so represents a permanent budget pressure. 

Patrick Keyes 300 

 

DIRECTORATE 
TOTAL 

  
  562 

 CHILDREN’S, ADULTS & HOUSING    

 

Children’s Remand Framework shortfall of funding given the additional pressure 
on the services in this area 

Kathy Bundred 250 

 

Children’s 
Learning & 
Achievement 

Impact of Children & Families Bill on Special Educational Needs, 
as set out in paragraphs 5.52 to 5.62 

Kathy Bundred 
Mary Pattinson 

TBC 

 

DIRECTORATE 
TOTAL 

  
  305 

 RESOURCES    

 Exchequer Services HB/CTS Admin Grant reduction in allocation from central government Jeff Potter 158 

P
age 64



$ytgo04o5.doc 

 

Legal & Democratic 
Services 

Electoral Registration increased costs due to additional legislative 
requirements 

Ian Burns 35 

 Corporate Utilities contractual increase in price Corporate 70 

     

 OVERALL TOTAL   1,213 

 
 

P
age 65



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX E 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note 1 : the detailed schemes included within this sum are set out on the following 
pages. 
Note 2 : the DFG grant funded element is as advised by DCLG on 2 January 2014. 
 

Core Havering Programme 
2014/15 

£'000 

  

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & Cemeteries 1,000 

  

Street Environment 2,000 

  

Protection of Assets and Health and Safety 500 

  

Regeneration 100 

  

Disabled Facilities Grant (Council element only) 300 

  

Total 3,900 

  

Disabled Facilities Grant (grant funded element - estimated) 655 

  

Total 4,555 

Page 66



$ytgo04o5.doc 

 

 

 

 

Capital Scheme Name Scheme Description Third Tier

Forward Programme 

Block Amount

Manager £

2014/15

Capital 

Receipts        

£

Grants & 

S106                         

£

Other 

External          

£

2014/15 Core Programme

Parklands Bridge Restoration of Parklands Bridge Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 80,000 80,000 80,000

Playground Replacement / repairs Replacement and repairs to equipment in playgrounds Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 60,000 60,000 60,000

Allotment investment Urgent works required on allotment sites Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 15,000 15,000 15,000

Heritage buildings Restoration and upkeep of historic buildings Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 30,000 30,000 30,000

Public Rights of Way and Countryside Fencing and path works Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 10,000 10,000 10,000

Depots H&S investment

Urgent works to deal with Health and Safety issues at 

the depots Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 10,000 10,000 10,000

Langtons Gardens restoration match funding HLF Bid match funding to restore Langtons Gardens Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 50,000 50,000 50,000

Customer access points Install customer access points in Libraries Martin Stanton

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 35,000 35,000 35,000

Libraries redecoration programme

Urgent redecoration and carpet replacement works in 

Libraries Ann Rennie

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 20,000 20,000 20,000

Book fund investment

Book purchase for the new libraries in Rainham and 

Harold Hill Ann Rennie

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 40,000 40,000 40,000

Public realm improvements Installation of public realm culture improvements Ann Rennie

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 20,000 20,000 20,000

Hornchurch Arts Signage for the Arts Offer Guy Selfe

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 10,000 10,000 10,000

Queen's Theatre

Essential repair and maintenance works at the Queen's 

Theatre Guy Selfe

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 20,000 20,000 20,000

Parks Investment

Improving the quality of the environment in parks across 

the Council Guy Selfe

Parks Libraries Leisure 

and Cemeteries 70,000 70,000 70,000

Hornchurch Athletics Stadium Floodlights

Sinking fund for the floodlights replacement at 

Hornchurch Athletics Stadium 30,000 30,000 30,000

500,000 500,000 500,000

Funding Sources

 

 

Capital Scheme Name Scheme Description Third Tier 
Forward Programme 

Block Amount
Manager £

2014/15

Capital 
Receipts        

£ 

Grants & 
S106                         

£

Other 
External          

£ 

2014/15 Core Programme

Crematorium Asset Renewal

Implementation of Priority Condition Survey Work / 
Chapel of Meditation Renovation/ Programmed Renewal 
of Cremators (and associated ductwork) Louise Edmonds

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & 
Cemeteries £415k 210,000 210,000 210,000

Bereavement Services Premises Renewal

Implementation of Priority Condition Survey Work 
(Buildings, Paths, Boundary Walls Programmed 
Renewal) Louise Edmonds

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & 
Cemeteries £415k 45,000 45,000 45,000 

Cemetery Asset Renewal
Implementation of Priority Condition Survey 
Work/Romford Chapel Stonework Renovation Louise Edmonds

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & 
Cemeteries £415k 165,000 165,000 165,000

Crematorium Improvements

 Vase Blocks Front Garden as Show Garden)/Electronic 
Book of Remembrance Louise Edmonds

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & 
Cemeteries £415k 55,000 55,000 55,000 

Cemetery Improvements
Conversion of  Romford Chapel to Hall of Remembrance 
and Visitor facility Louise Edmonds

Parks, Libraries, Leisure & 
Cemeteries £415k 25,000 25,000 25,000 

500,000 500,000 500,000

Funding Sources 

Page 67



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Capital Scheme Name

Scheme Description

Third Tier Forward Programme 

Block Amount

Proposed capital schemes, subject to change Manager £

 2014/15

Capital 

Receipts        

£

Grants & 

S106                         

£

Other 

External          

£

Highways 

Footways

Various highway footway improvement schemes

Chris Layton 

500,000 500,000 500,000

Footway Slurry seal Programe 

Various highway footway improvement schemes

Chris Layton 

200,000 200,000 200,000

Carriageways

Various highway carriageway improvement schemes

Chris Layton 

600,000 600,000 600,000

Anti-Skid

Anti skid surface areas in connection with above works 

Chris Layton 

25,000 25,000 25,000

Street Lighting

0

Street Lighting

Street Lighting replacement programme 

Chris Layton 

250,000 250,000 250,000

Center Island Bollards

Center Island bollard conversion / removals 

Chris Layton 

25,000 25,000 25,000

Lamp Column painting 

Large scale painting programme on main routes

Chris Layton 

20,000 20,000 20,000

Other

0

Gidea Park station scheme, Phase 3 Station & shopping area improvement scheme part 

funded by TFL

Chris Layton 

70,000 70,000 70,000

Small scale shopping centre scheme, TBA

Small scale shopping area improvements 

Chris Layton 

25,000 25,000 25,000

large scale shopping centre scheme, TBA

Local area improvement scheme 

Chris Layton 

75,000 75,000 75,000

Subway enhancements Completion of 2 year subway enhancement programme 

around town centre
Chris Layton 

0

Tree pit upgrades, remove grates & trip hazards Removal of metal grates and replacement with resin 

bonded non trip materials

Chris Layton 

20,000 20,000 20,000

Litter Bins  

Purchase of replacement & or additional litter bins 

Paul Ellis 

25,000 25,000 25,000

Parking 
0

Car parks, bays white lining
Re lining of car parking bays 

David Pritchard 
15,000 15,000 15,000

Car parks, small scale improvements 
Shrub beds, litter bins and fencing 

David Pritchard 
20,000 20,000 20,000

Waste 
0

Waste enforcement initiatives   

Increased waste enforcements initiatives that contribute 

towards cointainment of tonnage from illegal fly tipping

Paul Ellis 

20,000 20,000 20,000

Environmental Maintenance
0

Dangerous Tree Replacement Programme Removal of dangerous trees arising from storm damage, 

desease and or accidents  

Paul Ellis 

50,000 50,000 50,000

Shrub Bed Replacement schemes Removal of hign maintenance shrub beds that cause 

sight line problems 

Paul Ellis 

60,000 60,000 60,000

2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Funding Sources

 

 

Capital Scheme Name Scheme Description Third Tier

Forward Programme 

Block Amount

Manager £

 2014/15

Capital 

Receipts        

£

Grants & 

S106                         

£

Other 

External          

£

2014/15

Corporate buildings Fire risk assessment works Sue Wilks

Protection of Assets and 

Health and Safety £500k 75,000 75,000 75,000

Corporate buildings Legionella Sue Wilks

Protection of Assets and 

Health and Safety £500k 75,000 75,000 75,000

Corporate buildings Operational buildings issues Sue Wilks

Protection of Assets and 

Health and Safety £500k 100,000 100,000 100,000

Corporate buildings Corporate landlord works Andy Skeggs

Protection of Assets and 

Health and Safety £500k 100,000 100,000 100,000

Corporate buildings Actions arising from condition surveys Andy Skeggs

Protection of Assets and 

Health and Safety £500k 150,000 150,000 150,000

Totals 500,000 500,000 500,000

Funding Sources

 

 

Capital Scheme Name Scheme Description Third Tier

Forward Programme 

Block Amount

Manager £

2014/15

Capital 

Receipts        

£

Grants & 

S106                         

£

Other 

External          

£

2014/15 Core Programme

Town Centre Regeneration

Local improvement projects to support town centre and 

neighbourhood initiatives in Elm Park and Collier Row, 

including match for external funding Nigel Young Regeneration 100k 100,000 100,000 100,000

Funding Sources

 

 

Capital Scheme Name Scheme Description Third Tier

Forward Programme 

Block Amount

Manager £

2014/15  2015/16

2016/17      

and 

beyond

Capital 

Receipts        

£

Grants & 

S106                         

£

Other 

External          

£

2014/15 Core Programme

Disabled Facilities Grant Disabled Facilties Grant - 2014/15 Jonathan Geall 955,000 955,000 300,000 655,000

Funding Sources

 
 

Page 68



$ytgo04o5.doc 

DRAFT EDUCATION CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 AND 2015/16 
 

Capital Scheme 
Name Scheme Description  Amount    Funding Sources 

    

 £  

 2014/15 

2015/16      
and 

beyond 

Capital 
Receipts        

£ 

Grants & 
S106                         
£ 

Other 
External          

£ 

                

Primary Expansion Phase 2 primary expansion 
     
14,626,076  7,313,038 7,313,038   14,626,076   

Funded by:               

                

Basic Need Grant - 15/16 Allocation       14,624,076   

      

                

School Kitchen Works 

Block allocation to fund works in school kitchens 
required to deliver the increased offer of Free School 
Meals - Maintained Schools 

          
536,417  536,417     536,417   

School Kitchen Works 

Block allocation to fund works in school kitchens 
required to deliver the increased offer of Free School 
Meals - Voluntary Aided Schools 

          
106,325  106,325     106,325   

    
          
642,741  642,741     642,741   

Funded by:   
 

      
 

  

Universal infant free 
school meals capital 

2014-15 
  

      642,742   

                

P
age 69



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Nursery Expansion 
Programme 

Expansion of Nursery Education in 
Suttons/Mawney/Hacton (as part of PSPB 
Programme) 

          
422,000  422,000 422,000 

Funded by: 

Nursery Education 
grant         422,000   

                
Various Schools/ 
PRU's/ Children's 
Centres Emergency Repairs  

          
450,000  450,000     450,000   

Various Schools * 
Urgent / Unplanned Hygiene Water Works 
Programme  

          
175,000  175,000     175,000   

Various Schools * Education Capital Projects - Asbestos Removal  
          
400,000  400,000     400,000   

Various Schools  DDA works 
          
100,000  100,000     100,000   

Crownfield Replace Gas Fired Boiler (KS2 Building) 
          
120,000  120,000     120,000   

Scotts Primary Replace Gas Fired Boiler 
          
150,000  150,000     150,000   

Clockhouse Primary Replace Gas Fired Boiler (KS2 Building) 
          
140,000  140,000     140,000   

Mead Primary 
Inf & Junior Buildings Replace Gas Fired Boiler 

          
200,000  200,000     200,000   

Engayne Replace Gas Fired Boiler 
          
120,000  120,000     120,000   

Newtons Upgrade Electrical Distribution 
          
150,000  150,000     150,000   

Towers Infants Upgrade Electrical Distribution 
          
200,000  200,000     200,000   

Harold Court Primary Replace Windows and Doors 
          
150,000  150,000     150,000   

P
age 70



$ytgo04o5.doc 

Newtons Upgrade Electrical Distribution 
           
30,000  30,000     30,000   

Corbets Tey School * Roof replacement main block 
          
120,000  120,000     120,000   

Engayne Primary * Roof Covering Replacement 
           
40,000  40,000     40,000   

The James 
Oglethorpe * Roof Covering Replacement 

          
145,000  145,000     145,000   

Ravensbourne Replace Roof Covering 
          
150,000  150,000     150,000   

Whybridge Junior 
School * Window replacement 

           
50,000  50,000     50,000   

Gaynes  Window replacement 
          
110,000  110,000     110,000   

Whybridge Inf Replace Pipework & Heat Emitters 
          
200,000  200,000     200,000   

       
3,200,000  

  
3,200,000              -                  -    

   
3,200,000  

Funded By 

Estimated School 
Maintenance Grant 
14/15           3,200,000   

 

P
age 71



$ytgo04o5.doc 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
GRANT FUNDED AREAS 

 

PROGRAMME AREA £ 

TFL Programme for 2014/15 (announced on 20th December): 
Annual Spending Submission for Corridors, Neighbourhoods, and Supporting 
Measures 
Schemes for the Local Transport Funding "pot” 
Romford Major Scheme (Victoria Road and The Battis) 
Principal Road Maintenance schemes 

 
2,189,000 

 
100,000 
200,000 
567,000 

Note :  details still awaited for the Borough Cycling and Bridge Strengthening 
and Assessment Programmes  

Adults PSS Community Capacity Grant 2014/15  (estimated) 552,000 

Early Years Capital Grant  (estimated) 500,000 

Aiming High - Additional Needs for Disabled children (estimated) 170,000 
 
 

 
 

P
age 72



$ytgo04o5.doc 

APPENDIX F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE PLAN REFRESH 
 

“PLAN ON A PAGE” 
 
 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 FINAL DRAFT - CORPORATE PLAN REFRESH 2014-15 

Our Living Ambition Vision is to provide Havering's residents with the highest possible quality of life, in a borough that thrives on its links to the heart of the 
Capital, without ever losing the natural environment, historic identity and local way of life that makes Havering unique 

GOALS ENVIRONMENT LEARNING TOWNS AND COMMUNITIES INDIVIDUALS VALUE 

 

STRATEGIC  
OBJECTIVES  
 

What we are 
trying to achieve 

 

1. A CLEAN, SAFE AND 
GREEN BOROUGH 

 

2. CHAMPION EDUCATION AND 
LEARNING FOR ALL 

 

3. ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND 
CULTURAL OPPORTUNITIES IN 
THRIVING TOWNS AND 
VILLAGES 

 

4. VALUE AND ENHANCE THE LIVES 
OF OUR RESIDENTS 

 

5. HIGH CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION AND A 
STABLE COUNCIL TAX 

 

STRATEGIC  
OUTCOMES  
 

What success 
will look like 

 

1.1 Community taking 
responsibility for keeping 
the environment clean 
and tidy 

1.2 Havering is one of the 
safest boroughs in 
London 

1.3 Increased recycling and 
less waste going to 
landfill 

1.4 Reduced energy costs for 
the Council and residents 

1.5 Natural and built 
environment enjoyed by 
local communities and 
visitors alike 

1.6 Good infrastructure and 
transport links to the 
Capital and surrounding 
areas 

 

2.1 Every child has access to 
excellent education and 
learning opportunities 

2.2 Council resources focused 
on early years settings, 
schools and pupils who  
most need our support  

2.3 Maximise opportunities for 
musical participation and 
learning 

2.4 Young people are 
supported to realise their 
potential 

2.5 Reduced adult skills gap 
between Havering and the 
rest of London  

 

3.1 Communities are resilient 
and self-supporting 

3.2 Cohesive communities where 
people are respectful and 
welcoming of different 
cultures  

3.3 Housing that local people 
can afford and best use of 
Council social housing for 
those in greatest need   

3.4 An enterprising economy 
that supports established 
and new businesses 

3.5 Maximise local employment 
and work opportunities 

3.6 Culture and leisure play a 
key part in community life 
and Havering’s heritage and 
history is celebrated 

 

4.1 Holistic and integrated 
services that meet the needs of 
the individual or family and 
targeted at those who most 
need our help 

4.2 A focus on prevention and 
early intervention to improve 
the wellbeing of individuals 
and families who need specific 
help 

4.3 Improved choice and control 
over the health and social care 
people receive, including 
community-based support 

4.4 Lower levels of preventable ill 
health and people leading 
healthier lives 

4.5 Access to ‘early help offer’ for 
children and young people 
most at risk 

 

5.1   Customers are able to 
access information and 
self-serve 

5.2  Havering receives the 
best deal possible from 
changes in how local 
government is funded 

5.3   A transparent, less 
bureaucratic and more 
open Council  

5.4   High customer 
satisfaction with the 
Council 

5.5 Services cost less to run 
and are more efficiently 
delivered 

 

KEY 
ACTIVITIES 
 

How we will 
deliver our 
objectives 

 

� Continue to promote 
community clean-ups and 
self-reporting online (1.1) 

� Work with partners to 
maintain low crime rates 
and keep roads safe to 
make people feel safer (1.2) 

� Promote recycling and 
waste reduction and reduce 
the amount of waste that 
goes to landfill (1.3) 

� Maximise potential of 
energy efficiency schemes 
(1.4) 

� Deliver the cold weather 
befrienders scheme to 
tackle fuel poverty (1.4) 

� Deliver a programme of 
environmental 
improvements, 
incorporating nature 
conservation and biodiversity 
(1.5) 

� Deliver the Air Quality 
Action Plan to improve the 
health of residents (1.5) 

� Work with partners, 
including Transport for 
London and Crossrail, to 
improve transport links and 
better interchange facilities 
(1.6) 

� Tackle congestion and 
improve traffic management 
through parking control, 
highway improvement 
schemes and Smarter 
Travel (1.6) 

 

� Ensure the provision of high 
quality pre-school and 
primary school places for 0-
11 year olds (2.1) 

� Focused support for children 
with Special Educational 
Needs (2.2) 

� Close the performance gap 
across all Key Stages for 
those children in receipt of 
Free School Meals and their 
peers (2.2) 

� Develop the Music Hub, led by 
Havering Music School, 
through strengthened 
partnership working across 
the cultural sector (2.3)   

� Continue to promote 
apprenticeships and 
employers skills training (2.4) 

� Continue to work with private 
and voluntary partners and 
roll out the young people 
assets framework in the 
Youth Strategy (2.4) 

� Reduce the adults skills gap 
between Havering and the 
rest of London (2.5) 

� Work with educational 
partners to equip Havering’s  
workforce with the skills 
needed by local businesses 
(2.5) 

 

 

 

� Encourage local people to play 
an active part in their 
communities through 
volunteering (3.1) 

� Develop projects that promote 
diversity and acceptance (3.2) 

� Deliver 250 units of affordable 
housing and influence the 
quality of private housing and 
the places where people live  
(3.3) 

� Implement new offer of support 
to local businesses and 
promote investment in 
Havering (3.5) 

� Review and deliver Harold Hill, 
Rainham and Romford 
regeneration programmes, 
including new libraries in 
Rainham and Harold Hill  (3.5) 

� Deliver the culture strategy and 
place culture at the heart of 
quality of life, including civic 
pride events and a new state-of-
the-art leisure facility in 
Romford (3.6) 

� In partnership, maintain and 
enhance Havering’s green 
spaces to a high standard, 
including restoration of 
Raphael Park, Langton’s 
Garden, Broxhill Sports Park 
and Central Park, and promote 
them as a visitor destination 
(3.6) 

� Work with partners to protect 
local heritage and celebrate 
Havering’s history (3.6) 

 

� Provide safe services that are 
tailored to the needs of the 
individual or family (4.1) 

� Work with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group to ensure 
the best possible health 
outcomes and care services in 
Havering through joint 
commissioning and locality 
based integrated models of 
working (4.1) 

� Support improvements in access 
to and discharge from as well as 
the quality of services provided 
by Queen’s Hospital and the 
creation of a Joint Assessment 
and Discharge Team (4.1)  

� Deliver the Troubled Families 
project to provide early 
intervention and assistance for 
families who need specific help 
(4.2) 

� Deliver more community-based 
support, including volunteer-led 
schemes, and provide reablement 
services and assistive 
technologies to help people live 
independently (4.3) 

� Expand the availability of extra 
care housing options for 
vulnerable adults to help them 
live independently in the 
community (4.3) 

� Focus activities on preventing ill-
health and encourage healthier 
lifestyles (4.4) 

� Improve access to our ‘early help 
offer’ for children and young 
people most at risk (4.5) 

 

� Improve accessibility to the 
Council, including self-
service for customers to 
report, pay and apply online 
(5.1) 

� Evidence-led 
commissioning of goods 
and services that provide 
best value for money (5.1) 

� Seek to maximise funding 
for Havering through 
lobbying and attracting 
other external funds (5.2) 

� Provide accessible and 
transparent information on 
how we are performing and 
what we are spending (5.3) 

� Attract, retain and develop 
high performing staff, 
supported by effective 
people management 
practices (5.4) 

� Continue to improve 
customer satisfaction (5.4) 

� Commit to sharing services 
with other partners, such as 
the new shared service with 
London Borough of 
Newham (5.5) 

 

MEASURES 
AND  
TARGETS  
 

How we will 
know we have 
achieved our 
objectives 
 

 

���� The number of fly tip 
incidences will be less than 
3500 by 2015 (1.1)  

���� The number of anti-social 
behaviour crimes reported 
will reduce from 6092 in 
2012 to XXXX by 2015 (1.2)  

���� The number of residential 
burglaries reported will 
reduce from 2075 in 2012 to 
XXXX by 2015 (1.2) 

���� The number of people killed 
and seriously injured in 
road traffic accidents will be 
less than 75 by 2015 (1.2) 

���� Household waste recycled 
will increase from 35% in 
2012 to 36% by 2015 (1.3) 

���� Residual household waste 
will reduce from 653kg in 
2012 to 640kg by 2015 (1.3)  

���� Greenhouse gas emissions 
from our estate and 
operations will reduce 1% 
year on year from 25700 
tonnes in 2012 (1.4)  

 

���� The % of early years 
providers, PVI settings and 
childminders only, judged 
good or outstanding by 
Ofsted will increase to 75% by 
2015 (2.1) 

���� The % of 3 and 4 year olds 
who have access to an early 
education entitlement place if 
their parents wish will 
increase from 86% in 2012 to 
96% by 2015 (2.1) 

���� The number of schools where 
fewer than 60% of pupils 
achieve Level 4 or above in 
both Maths and English will 
remain at 0 by 2015 (2.2) 

���� The achievement gap 
between pupils eligible for 
free school meals and their 
peers will reduce to XX KS2 
and XX KS4 by 2015 (2.2) 

���� The % of 16-19 year olds 
(school years 12-14) who are 
not in education, employment 
or training will reduce from 
4.5% in 2012 to 4% by 2015 
(2.3) 

���� The number of apprentices 
recruited in the borough will 
increase from 320 in 2012 to 
630 by 2015 (2.3) 

 

���� The % of residents that give up 
their time to volunteer will be 
more than 25% by 2015 (3.1) 

���� Residents’ satisfaction with the 
area as a place to live will more 
than 76% by 2015 (3.2) 

���� The % of residents who feel 
that people get on well together 
in their neighbourhood will be 
more than 66% by 2015 (3.2) 

���� The number of new affordable 
homes will increase from 178 
per year in 2010 to 250 per year 
by 2015 (3.3) 

���� A further 1290 homes will be 
made decent by 2015 (3.3) 

���� The number of businesses 
accessing advice through 
regeneration initiatives will 
increase from 666 in 2012 to 
800 by 2015 (3.4) 

���� Residents’ satisfaction with 
library services will be more 
than 81% by 2015 (3.5) 

 

 

���� The % of children’s placements 
lasting at least two years will 
increase from 51% in 2012 to 70% 
by 2015 (4.1) 

���� The % of people using social care 
who receive self-directed support 
and those receiving direct 
payments will increase from 45% 
in 2012 to 75 % by 2015 (4.3) 

���� The % of people who having 
undergone reablement return to 
Adult Social Care 91 days after 
completing reablement and 
require an ongoing service will 
reduce from 7.8% in 2012 to 6% 
by 2015 (4.3) 

���� The number of careline and 
telecare users in the borough will 
increase from 3366 in 2012 to 
5000 by 2015 (4.3) 

 

 

���� The % of council tax 
collected will increase from 
96.62% in 2012 to 97% by 
2015 (5.1) 

���� The % of national non-
domestic rates collected will 
be maintained at 96.5% by 
2015 (5.1)  

���� The % of residents who feel 
informed about what the 
Council does will be more 
than 42% by 2015 (5.3) 

���� Customer satisfaction with 
the Contact Centre will 
remain above 85% by 2015 
(5.4) 

 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G: London Borough of Havering 
2014/15 and 2015/16 Provisional Settlement  
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The London Borough of Havering is unique among London boroughs. Havering has 
the oldest population in the capital – a population that is predicted to get older still 
over the coming years. Despite this demography and the acute pressure that an 
older population places on the services of the local authority. The borough’s 
apparent lack of significant deprivation – which masks the growing pressure of 
providing support to London’s oldest resident base – has seen it receive extremely 
low levels of per capita funding from Government. The Council’s response has been 
to operate some of London’s lowest-costing services. 
 
The indicators used in the 2013/14 settlement are now frozen and the previous 
flooring methodology has resulted in an out of date formula grant system that 
benefits those authorities who are reliant on government grant whilst penalising 
those authorities that are highly reliant on council tax.  
 

Introduction:  
 
The London Borough of Havering’s calculated 2014/15 Settlement Funding 
Assessment (SFA) allocation is £69.658m, £6m less than 2013/14 (2015/16 
allocation is provisionally set at £60.753m, a 12.7% reduction from 2014/15). Table 1 
below shows a summary of the 2 year settlement which clearly demonstrates the 
percentage reduction in formula grant by 2015/16. 
 
Table 1 – Havering’s Settlement Funding Allocation for 2013/14 to 2015/16 
 

 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 % Change 
since 2013/14 

RSG £45.379m £38.881m £29.126m (35.8%) 

Business Rates £30.189m £30.777m £31.627m 4.7% 

Total £75.569m £69.658m £60.753m (19.6%) 

 
The figures stated above is “best” case scenario as this is assuming our business 
rate yield increases in line with Government’s expectations as well as not including 
any shortfall due to the proportionate share calculation 
 
Havering has been continuously penalised with low level settlement funding which 
have far from reflected the needs of the borough. The authority has had to revise its 
saving plans, bringing forward its plans to reduce back office costs, and thereby 
increasing the pressure to find savings in other services in the future. Havering has 
on numerous occasions responded to the shortfalls and the flawed approach in the 
methodology surrounding the settlement with the outcome unchanged and with our 
position deteriorating further. 
 
Havering has a unique demographic which is not truly reflected in the current formula 
grant methodology. How can an authority with the highest proportion of elderly 

Page 77



population in London – with indications that this is likely continue and increase 
further – but yet receive one of the lowest settlements?  
 

The London Borough of Havering’s Concerns: 
 

Funding reductions 
 
Havering has one of the lowest levels of grant per capita in London. As a result, 
Havering has had to increase its council tax to compensate for the unfair allocation 
distributed by the current formula methodology. For comparison purposes, if 
Havering received the same level of grant per head as its lowest neighbouring outer 
London authority, Havering would be able to reduce its Council Tax by 24%. In 
contrast if Havering received the same level of grant than another neighbouring outer 
London authority, Havering could reduce its council tax by approximately 75%. This 
clearly demonstrates the cliff edges and flaws within the current funding system that 
by a change in postcode residences see a dramatically different level of funding 
compared to someone living a few metres away.  
 
The continuation of a funding formula which is unfit for purpose and using this as a 
base for future funding models magnifies the issue. The indicators used in the 
current frozen formula grant is out of date and does not reflect or apportion funding 
in a fair and transparent way. In contrast to the method of apportion funding, the 
methodology in allocating specific / unringfenced grant provides Havering with a 
highly comparable allocations. Table 2 below shows the grant per capita for 
Havering and the rest of East London clearly demonstrating the poor allocation 
Havering receives.  
 
Table 2 – 2014/15 Grant per Head of Population 
 

Code Authority 

Inner / 

Outer 

London 

SUFA 

(m's) 

Projected 

Population 

Grant Per 

Head 

£’s 

R383 Barking & Dagenham 

Outer 

London 

         

£113.681  185,911 

            

£611  

R393 Havering 

Outer 

London 

           

£69.658  237,232 

            

£294  

R398 Newham 

Outer 

London 

         

£218.534  307,984 

            

£710  

R399 Redbridge 

Outer 

London 

         

£105.635  278,970 

            

£379  

R402 Waltham Forest 

Outer 

London 

         

£138.543  258,249 

            

£536  

 
Penalising Self-Funding Authorities 
 
Previous settlements have continued the emphasis on penalising local authorities for 
being self-funding. Those authorities who have had to increase their council tax to 
mitigate the flawed funding system that Government has initially created and rolled 
forward year on year have seen the largest reductions in funding. No attempt has 
been made by central government to address the significant unfair cliff edges in 

Page 78



funding between one neighbouring authorities to another. The previous smoothing 
mechanism is now out of sync with the current relative needs of the authorities and 
some authorities are receiving significantly more funding than their relative needs 
suggests. Now the formula grant is frozen until 2020 this only magnifies the issue 
rolling forward year on year.  
 
Area Cost Adjustment 
 
As part of the formula grant calculation, the Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) is used to 
reflect geographical variation in the costs of providing local services. The ACA 
underestimates wage differentials across England by applying a lower limit. This 
does not allow for the cost of living in London to be factored into the calculation and 
penalises London authorities. Although the formula is currently frozen, there is every 
opportunity for this to be revised as this not only factors into the Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) allocations but also for new grants that are using the out of date 
Relative Needs Formulae. For any improvement to affect Havering’s formula grant, 
the formula grant would need to be re-opened and the currently flooring methodology 
removed and reassessed. 
 
Council Tax Support 
 
As part of the local government financial settlement, Council Tax Support has been 
rolled into the formula grant calculation. As a consequence, this grant previously 
allocated from the DWP has now been reduced in-line with the funding cuts affecting 
local government. In 2013/14 the Council Tax Support grant was localised to Local 
government with a 10% reduction due to the inability of the DWP to find the 
necessary reductions and force Local Government at the forefront of the current 
budget cuts to find further savings. Now the grant has been reduced further by 28% 
through scaling which assumes Havering is able to keep up with the targets placed 
by DCLG in respect of their business rates, which due to the proportionate share 
calculation puts Havering in a deficit position. Table 3 below shows the reduction of 
Council Tax Support within the formula; for Havering, the effective reduction is over 
£3.7m. This is one of the reasons behind Havering’s overall funding reduction and 
will require significant savings in 2015/16. Havering is now facing a reduction £9m in 
overall formula grant funding from 2014/15 to 2015/16 which may force significant 
changes to our localised council tax support scheme as a result. 
 
Table 3 – The impact of Council Tax Support within the formula grant 
 
2014/15 RSG Business Rates Total 

2013/14 Allocation 8,135,525 5,412,342 13,547,867 

(Scaling) / Inflation (2,063,055) 105,432 (1,957,622) 

Revised 2014/15 allocation 6,072,470 5,517,774 11,590,244 

% (Reduction) / Increase (25.36%) 1.95% (14.45%) 

 

2015/16 RSG Business Rates Total 

2014/15 Allocation 6,072,470 5,517,774 11,590,244 

(Scaling) / Inflation (1,958,290) 152,295 (-1,805,995) 

Revised 2015/16 allocation 4,114,180 5,670,069 9,784,250 

% (Reduction) / Increase (32.25%) 2.70% (15.58%) 

 

Total Reduction RSG Business Rates Total 

Page 79



2013/14 Allocation 8,135,525 5,412,342 13,547,867 

(Scaling) / Inflation (4,021,344) 257,727 (3,763,617) 

Revised 2015/16 allocation 4,114,180 5,670,069 9,784,250 

% (Reduction) / Increase (49.43%) 4.76% (27.78%) 

 
Council Tax Freeze Grants 
 
As part of the 2014/15 settlement, the 2013/14 freeze grant has been rolled up into 
the SFA in addition to the 2011/12 allocation. Prior to the recent settlement, the 
unringfenced grant has not seen any reduction through recent announcements 
however the 2011/12 grant has started to be reduced. In addition there are fears that 
over the next few years these grants will be rolled into the formula grant and reduce 
in-line with departmental budget cuts or removed completely. This raises questions 
over the financial viability of accepting government freeze grants if these are to be 
reduced in later years of Government spending cuts. 
 
New Homes Bonus 

As announced in the 2013 Spending Round, the New Homes Bonus (NHB) was due 
to reduce by £400m across the country, however, since the 2013 Autumn Budget 
Statement it was decided only to top-slice the grant from London authorities to the 
London Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  There is London wide support of the removal 
of this decision which based on DCLG protection for the New Homes Bonus would 
result in a potential reduction to Havering’s allocation in excess of £1.6m. This 
funding stream was created for financial year 2011/12.  Although it has been classed 
as a new funding stream, it is effectively money top-sliced from the overall funding 
“pot”.  As the national NHB pot grows, the overall pot for RSG reduces. This funding 
was originally a grant to local authorities who can “predict” their NHB allocation to 
prepare and build long-term plans. The decision to top-slice funding from the NHB 
demonstrates the concerns in any funding from central government for long-term 
projects may be cut for other purposes. Long-term financial planning is key in 
bringing quality services to the community and finding efficiencies and savings to the 
public sector. This policy decision undermines any long-term funding provided from 
central government and creates resilience in building long-term strategy as this 
funding can be reduced or removed in a moment’s notice for other purposes.  

Housing Benefit Admin Grant 
 
Previous to the settlement announcement the Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
(HB/CTS) Administration grant allocations were released. This showed that Havering 
will receive the largest reduction in administration grant in London for 2014/15 of 
11% whilst having one of the lowest grants per caseload in London. Authorities with 
the same level of caseload are receiving significantly more funding than Havering. 
Havering’s caseload is relatively low compared to inner London authorities, however 
these authorities have not seen any / minimal reductions in funding in comparison. 
The methodology does not take into account the fixed costs in administration 
HB/CTS at the detriment of those authorities with relatively low caseloads.  
  
Local Welfare Provision 
 

Page 80



The Local Welfare Provision was created in 2013/14 in order to help those individual 
in most need due to the economic climate. As announced as part of the settlement, 
this will cease from 2015/16. Once again local government are being asked to 
deliver savings on behalf of central government with those at most risk likely to be 
affected. It is our belief that given the cuts to local authorities over the next couple of 
year and during the next parliament that this service will no longer be able to be 
provided by most authorities especially without the funding currently offered. 
 
Demographics  
 
Action needs to be taken to address the on-going flawed methodology from the 
current formula grant calculation. Havering has continued to receive significantly less 
funding than the National; London; and outer London average.  The population of 
Havering is growing at a faster rate than the England average.  Our 65+ population 
is the highest in London and our 90+ population is expected to increase 
considerably by 2021 within the current methodology the funding model is and will 
not address this high need, high cost area.  
 
Havering is the third largest borough in the capital, however again this funding does 
not reflect this. The formula grant calculation has continued to be rolled over each 
year without a fundamental review of the cliff edges that exist between authorities. 
From a change in postcode, the spend per head of population can increase by 
£1000 which in our opinion is not a fair method of apportionment. This would be 
even higher if it was not our on-going transformation programme initiated from the 
emergency budget back in 2010.  
 
In our opinion, this needs serious review and quickly as these and the additional cuts 
affecting local government hits local authorities in the coming year. Assuming the 
current methodology in funding continues this well result in either front line cuts or an 
increase in council tax. It is unfair to expect local authorities with minimal grant to 
continue whilst the numerous flaws in the formula grant allocation.  

 
Possible solutions 
 
We genuinely believe that the local government funding system is neither objective 
nor equitable in its allocation of resources to local government and as a direct result 
has a direct impact to Havering’s taxpayers. We would therefore ask Minsters to 
consider the following proposals: 
 

1. Review the current formula grant in respect of  
a. Cliff edges - One method of rectifying this on-going issue to create a 

phased smoothing affect between local authorities to ensure that a 
postcode lottery does not continue to exist. We accept that this is not a 
“quick-fix” solution however a phased approach would address the 
issue in time. 

b. Indicators used in allocating funding. A number of the indicators are out 
of date and or do not reflect the demographic pressures. 

2. Reverse the decision in regards to the NHB top-slice 
3. Review the methodology in allocating HB/CTS admin grant to include the 

fixed costs of allocating funding. 

Page 81



4. Removal of the lower limit in regards to the ACA 
5. Revision to the methodology to address low benefit take-up in London 
6. Reinstate the Local Welfare Funding 

 
 
 
 
 
Response to the technical questions 
 
Questions 
 
Question 1: Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to remove the 
capitalisation holdback and re-allocate the funding? 
 

• Havering agrees for with Government’s decision to remove the capitalisation 
holdback however we do not agree with the reallocation of the holdback to 
fund the Efficiency Support grant or rural funding element. If Government 
wishes to provide funding for specific purposes this should be provided for by 
new funding. 
 

Question 2: Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to reduce the New 
Homes Bonus holdback from £800m to £700m? 
 

• Havering agrees that the hold back should be reduced by £100 million. 
 
Question 3: Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to increase and roll 
in funding for rural authorities? 
 

• As per Question 1 
 

 

 

Page 82


	Agenda
	1 MEMBERSHIP AND CHAIRMAN OF MEETING
	5 THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL STRATEGY
	Doc 2 - Jan 14 Report Appendices v2 (2)
	Doc 3 - Corporate Plan on Page 2014-15_final draft 020114
	Doc 4 - London Borough of Havering settlement response v4


